44 Station Street
Cobram Vic 3644
Www.moira.vic.gov.au
info@moira.vic.gov.au

AGENDA

UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL
FOR
THURSDAY 10 OCTOBER 2024
TO BE HELD AT BRIEFING ROOM
COMMENCING AT 11:00 AM

RECORDING

Consistent with section 13.3 of our Governance Rules, Council officers have been authorised to
record the public session of this meeting using an audio recording device.

LIVE STREAMING

Council meetings will now be lived streamed to allow those interested in viewing proceedings
greater access to Council decisions and debate, without attending the meeting in person.

1.  WELCOME CALLING TO ORDER - CEO

2. PRAYER

Almighty God we humbly ask you to guide our deliberations for the welfare and benefit of the
Moira Shire and its people whom we serve.

Amen
3. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS

We, the Moira Shire Council, acknowledges the traditional owners of the land upon which we
meet and pay our respects to their Elders both past and present.

4. APOLOGIES / LEAVE OF ABSENCE

5. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION
6 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE

6.1 CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND
PERFORMANCE STATEMENT 2

7. CLOSE OF MEETING
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT

Recommendation

That Council:

1. Approve in principle the Financial Report and the Performance Statement for the financial
year ended 30 June 2024.

2. Authorise Chair Administrator Emonson and Administrator Sheed to certify the
statements, in conjunction with the Chief Executive Officer and the Principal Accounting
Officer, in their final form, and after any changes recommended, or agreed to by the
Auditor-General have been made, in accordance with Section 99(3) of the Local
Government Act 2020; and

3. Authorise the 2023/24 Financial report and Performance Statement, in their final form, be
included in the 2023/24 Annual Report in accordance with Section 98 of the Local
Government Act 2020.

1. Executive Summary

The draft Financial Report and Performance Statement for the year ended 30 June 2024 have
been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Local Government
Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The draft Financial Report and the Performance Statement are currently being reviewed by the
Victorian Auditor General’s Office. These reports will be ready for signing in their final form after
any changes recommended or agreed to by the Auditor-General have been made.

The actual result for 2023/24 represents a deficit of $4.8 million compared to the adopted
budget surplus of $17.6 million. Financial principles have been adopted to mitigate the financial
impact of the adverse forecast underlying result. These principles were documented in section
5c of Council’s 2024/25 Annual Budget, which also documents financial targets that will ensure
Council achieves a breakeven underlying result by 2027/28

The Moira Shire Council Audit and Risk Committee (AR Committee) reviewed the final draft, as
attached to this report, on 9 October 2024 where the AR Committee recommended that Council
certify the statements in their final form and after any changes recommended or agreed to by
the Auditor-General have been made, in accordance with Section 99(3) of the Local
Government Act 2020.

2. Background

The Financial Report and Performance Statement require certification by two Administrators,
the Chief Executive Officer, and the Principal Accounting Officer under Section 99(3) of the
Local Government Act 2020 to enable them to be included in the 2023/24 Annual Report.

The Moira Shire Council Audit and Risk Committee (AR Committee) reviewed an initial draft of
the Financial Report and Performance Statement at the meeting held on 12 September 2024.
After a final adjustment, the final draft, as attached to this report, was considered by the AR
Committee on 9 October 2024, where the AR Committee recommended that Council certify the
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024

FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

statements in their final form and after any changes recommended or agreed to by the Auditor-
General have been made, in accordance with Section 99(3) of the Local Government Act 2020.

The external auditors attended the AR Committee meeting on both the 12 September 2024 and
9 October 2024 to provide a verbal update on the status of the audit and present the draft audit
report and management letter.

Reports will be ready for signing in their final form after any changes recommended or agreed to
by the Auditor-General have been made, in accordance with Section 98(4) and 98 (5) of the
Local Government Act 2020.

3. 2024 Financial Report Summary

The following table summarises some key financial results and balances for 2023/24:

Adopted Actual
Budget 2023/24 Variance
2023/24 $000 $000
$000
Operating surplus (deficit) 17,611 (4,847) (22,458)
Cash balance (including Other Financial Assets) 56,000 55,664 (336)
Capital works 42,223 15,347 (26,876)

Operating deficit

The deficit compared to budget (negative variance of $22.5 million) is influenced by the
following movements:

Income:

- Operating grant income was $12.4 million less than budget for 2023/24, predominately due
to the Commonwealth Government's Financial Assistance Grant previously being paid in
advance. However, this was not receipted until July 2024.

- Capital grant income received in 2023/24 was $14.2 million less than budget due to delays
in obtaining funding body approval for flood restoration works as well as delays in major,
externally funded, capital projects.

Expenditure:
- Higher depreciation charges on Property, Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment assets
following significant increases in asset revaluations in 2022/23 financial year.

Note 2.1.1 of the attached Draft 2024 Financial Report provides further information on the 2024
financial performance compared to adopted budget.
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

Cash balance

The 2023/24 actual balance of Cash and Term Deposit is $55.7 million, which is consistent with
budget. The reason budget was achieved despite Council not receipting the Commonwealth
Financial Assistance Grant, is because Council had underspent on its capital delivery program.

Capital works

The 2023/24 capital expenditure of $15.3 million is $26.9 million less than the 2023/24 adopted
budget. This is largely due to project delays for the Yarrawonga Multisport Stadium and
Yarrawonga Library, delays in road renewal works due to wet weather events and delays in
obtaining funding body approval for flood restoration works.

The ending Work in Progress (WIP) balance of $8.5 million remained consistent with the ending
balance in 2022/23. This is due to several projects being carried forward for development in
2024/25

Note 2.1.2 of the attached draft Financial Report provides further information on capital works
compared to adopted budget.

Financial Performance Indicators Summary

The financial sustainability indicators show Council’s underlying result requires immediate
attention to ensure that Council remains financially viable in the future. Financial principles have
been adopted to mitigate the financial impact of the adverse forecast underlying result. These
principles were documented in section 5¢ of Council’s 2024/25 Annual Budget, which also
documents financial targets that will ensure Council is achieving a breakeven underlying result
by 2027/28.

A summary of the financial performance indicators along with explanations of any variations are
included in the attached draft Performance Statement.

4, Conclusion

The Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2024 has been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, the Local Government Act 2020, and the Local Government
(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. The Performance Statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2020.

It is recommended that Council authorise the 2023/24 Financial Report and Performance
Statement to be certified by the Administrators, the Chief Executive Officer and the Principal
Accounting Officer.

Attachments

1 DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report
2 DRAFT - 2024 Performance Statement
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Meoira Shire Council
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Mgira Shire Council

Financial Report
Table of Contente
FINAMCIAL REPORT Page
Cerification of the Financal Siatamants 1
Victortan Audtar-General's Office Repart 2
Financial Statements
Comprehensive Income Statemant 4
Balance Shes 5
Slatamant of Changes in Equily Li}
Statemant of Cash Flows 7
Statement of Capital Works i
Hates to the Financial Statements
Mote 1 Owarview g
Male 2 Analysis of our resulis 1
2.1 Performance against budopst 11
2.2 Aralysis af Geuncil resulls by program 1E
Mole 3 Funding for the delivery of our services 18
31, Rates and charges 18
12, Stahgory fess and fines 18
33 Userleas 18
34, Funding fram other levels of governmenl 1%
15, Cantributions 21
16, Netgain/{less) on deposal of property, infrastneciure, plant and equipment 21
17, Other income 22
Mole 4 The cost of defivering services 3
41.  Employes costs 23
42, Materials and services 23
43 Depreciation 23
44,  Amorisalion - intangible aszels M
45 Daepreciatian - right of use assets 24
46, Allowancs far impaiment lasses 24
47, Borrowing cosls 24
48,  Financa cosls - laasas 4
449,  Other expansas 24
Mote 5 bevesting Inoand financing our opesations 26
51, Financal assels 26
52 Maon-firancial assats 27
53.  Payables, trust funds and deposits and condract and athar Babilities 28
B4, Irderest bearrg llabilitias 29
5.5, Provisions a0
56,  Financing amangements a2
57.  Commitments £
58 leases £k
Mote & Assels we manig e e
6.1.  Property, infrastructura plant and aguipmeant 5
6.2. Imvestmenis in associstes and joint arangements 4
Nole 7 Papple and relationshios 4
71, Council ard kl_“,’" rallagur'lunl remumeralion 46
T2 Reelatad party dischasura 48
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Maira Shire Council

Financial Report
Table of Contents
Paga
Mole 8 Menaging uncertsintias L]
81, Contngent assets and liakilties 48
B2, Change i sccounting standards 5t
B3, Financial instruments 50
B4.  Fairvalus maasursment 52
85, Events occuring after balance date 53
BE Priar pesiod adisiment 53
Mote @ Ofher matiers

1.  Reserves 55
52, Reconcliasan of cash flows from aperating activities to suplusidesict) 57
83, Superannualion 58

Mote 10 Changes in acceunting palicy
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Muoira Shire Cowncil
202324 Financial Report

Certification of the Financial Statements

In my apinicn, the accompanying financial statemends have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act
2020, the Locs' Govermment (Flanning and Reparting) Regquiations 2020, the Austraan Accourding Standards ard other
mandatory prafessional reparting requiremeants.

Beaw Miffner CA

Principal Accaunting Offlcer
Dated @ 25 Seplember 2024
Cabwam

Inawr opinicn, the accaempanying financial slztements present faidy the financial irarsactions of Maira Shire Council for the
year andad 30 June 2024 and the financial pesition of tha Council a8 &t that dasa.

As al the dabe of signing, we are nol aware of any circumstancas which would rendes any parliculars in the linancial
slatements 1o be misleading of inaoaurate

We hanve been authariged by the Councl and by the Lacal Governmen! (Plaming and Reposting) Regulalions 2080 ta
cerlify the fnancal slatements in their ina form

O Grasms Emonsen PEAM
Administrator (Chair)
Dated : 25 Seplember 2024
Cabvam

Suzanng Sheed AW
Administrator

Dated : 25 Sepfembar 2024
Cabvam

Matthew Morgan

Chief Executive Officer
Dated : 25 Seprember 2024
Cobvavm
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

IWoira Shire Council
2023724 Financial Report

Insarl VAG0 Reparl - Page 1
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

IWoira Shire Council
2023724 Financial Report

Insert MAGO Report - Page 2
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Moira Shire Couwncil

2023724 Finaneisl Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
Mote 024 023
000 $000

Incami | Rivenise
Rales and chamngas ER| 44,845 42482
Statutony fees and fines iz 2,002 1,487
Usger fees i3 1,870 2244
Granls - operating d4(a| 2,207 21215
Grants - capitsl 3.4(b) 7658 4,569
Contributions - monetany 15(a) 48 T8
Coantrbufans - rom menetary” 31.5(b} 5445 1413
Mel gain on deposal of praperty, nlrastneciurs, plant and equipment 16 556 212
Share of ned profits [or boss) of associabes and joint ventures 6.2 &5 (B0
Other income it 6,220 3,010
Tatal Income | revenue 12,057 40,409
Expensas
Emplayes costs 41 26,155 22,744
Materials and sendces 42 007 24,957
Depracialion 43 15,548 12778
Amariizalion - inlengible assets 44 E23 a08
Depreciation - nght of use assets 45 5Ta 658
Abcrwance for Imgairment lasses 46 1] 16
Borrowing cosls 47 - 12
Finance costs - leases 43 98 17
Oither expenses 44 357 2,689
Total expenses 76,904 4,788
Surplusi [Deficit) for the year [4.847) 25621
Other camprehensive income
ltems that will nat be reclassified to surplus or deficitin fulure periods
Mel a=zat revaluation gain B.1(a) 11,080 164,328
Tatal other comprehansive income 11,088 164,328
Total comprehensive result 7,142 189,948

The above comprehensiee income statemant should be read in canjuncticn with the accompanying notes,
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Moira Shire Council
202424 Financial Raport
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2024
Nate 2024 2023
§000 §000
Bssels
Current assats
Cash end cash equivalents 5.14al 4 664 4,000
Qther financial assets 5.1{b) 51,000 57,000
Trada and alhar recaivablas B[z 5,73 4 554
Coniract assets 5108 2,080 1,105
nveniories 5.2{a) 738 2]
Caher assels 5.2k} 2,045 1,893
Tatal current assels &6,262 74,548
Non-current assets
avestments in assocates and faint aranpenents 6.2 BRE 1,396
Propery, mlasiruchurs, plant and equipment” 6.1 BO2 635 TES, DE4
Right-af-use assets 58 1,876 2574
nlangible Assels 5.2(c) 1,580 6,114
Tatal nan-current assets 811,388 795,773
Tatal assats 878,250 BT0, 321
Liabsliities
Current Habilities
Tradz and athar payables 5.3{a) 3,852 2544
Trust furds and depasils 5.3{bj 4520 3,398
Contract and other liakilies 530 6,560 9,066
Prowisions 55 747 §,689
nteresi-hearing Rabiifies 5.4 135 4
Legs= liabilities 58 455 T8
Tatal current liabllites 22,979 22,561
Non-current liabilities
Prowisions 55 B,485 8,533
nlenest-biaring kabibbes ad 1,548 46k
Leasza liabiltias 5.8 1,482 1,548
Tatal non-current liabilities 1,16 10,547
Tatal llabiites 34,295 33,508
Net assets 843,955 B36813
Equity
Acoumulated surplus® 250,047 268,715
Resarias 9.1 584,008 565,098
Tatal Equity 843,955 B36 313

* Rafer ta Moba B8 far information on restaterment of prior pariod balance.

The abowe balance sheet should b= read in conjunction with the sccompenying netes.
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Ioira Shire Council

2023724 Financial Repart
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
Note Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Total Surplus Reserves Reserves
024 §000 §ono 000 §'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year E36.813 268,715 BES 46 4,152
Dieficit for the year (4,847} 84Ty - -
Mal assed ravalualion gan 9.1(a) 11,989 : 11,589 .
Transfars o ather raserves R ] - 13.821) - 3,821
Transfers from cbher resenves a1k - - - -
Balance at end of the financial year 843955 250,947 570,935 13,073
Accumulated  Revaluation Other
Todal Surplus Reserves Reserves
2023 §'000 §000 §'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financiel year E4E.BE4 215,578 354 18 36,668
Bumphus far the year 256M 250621 - -
Met assed revalisalion gan 9.%a) 164 338 . 164 328 .
Transtars 1o alhar reserves 9.9k - (177 - 177
Transfers from ofher resenves BRI - 27693 - (27 683)
Balance at end of the financial year 836,813 268,715 558,046 9,152

* Refer to Mabe B far informaticn on restetement of prior pericd balance.

The abave statement of changes in equity shoud be read in conjunciion with the sccampanying nates,
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Maira Shire Council
2023724 Financial Report
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
2024 2023
Inflows Inflows!
(Dutflaws) [Dutflows)
Nate §'000 §'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 43636 42,026
Statutory feas and fines 1,470 1,880
Liser leas 1,987 1,459
Grarits - oparaling 2680 20,950
Granis - capital 4,485 5,856
Corbuticns - manesary 945 TG
Irterest received LT85 &34
Trusl funds and deposits kan 5741 5,606
Other receipts 1,029 841
Met BT refund!{paymend) (62} 28
Employes casls (26,149} (22,6500
Materials and sarvicas (31,211} (28,415
Trust funds and depaosits repaid (.52 (4, 765)
Cther payments - [38)
Nat cash provided byl{used in) operating activities a2 3,315 25,479
Cash flows from investing activities
Fayments for propery, infrastructure, plant and ecuipment Bl (15,347} 14,943
Proceeds ram Sale of praperty, inlrastreciure, plant and equpment 215 B3
Froceads fram investments 40,553 35,004
Payments for investments (34,000} [d4,00d)
Met cash provided byf|used in) investing activities (7,839) (23,379
Caszh flows from financing activities
Finence costs (33} (1%)
Procaads fram homowings 1017 -
Repaymant of borrawings (110} [298]
Irterest paid - laase Fabilty (58] (1
Repaymant of lease ishilties [56) |E05)
Met cash pravided byf|used in) financing activities 178 (1,032)
Mat incraase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalerts (4.336] 1,068
Cash and cash equivelents &t the beginning of the financial year &.000 7932
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the financial year 4,664 4,000

The: above slatement of cash low should be read in conunciion with the accomparying nales,
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FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)
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CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Muaira Shire Cowncil

202324 Financial Report
Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
paikL) 2
000 $o00
Praperty
Land 1
Lend under raads . 18
Land improvements 158 -
Todal land 167 18
Buildings 3,323 270
Total buildings 3,323 LT
Total property 3490 1118
Plant and equipment
Plard, machinery are equipment 3,060 1.087
Fiaturas, fitings and fumitura 10 -
Coamputers and Telecommunications 24
Pumps o -
Total plant and equipment 311 1,057
Infrastructure
Roads 3933 4180
Kerb and chanmsl 452 483
Bridges 25 49
Faedpaths end cyde ways "y 945
Drainage 1,115 1806
Culveris and foodways TH 108
Racreational, lefsura and community fadlities 443 1.761
Wasie management 204 ]
Aerodrames 43 =
Dihar a5500s Bs2 1,343
Total infrastructure 8,124 11,216
Total capital works expenditure 15,47 14,952
Represented by:
Mew asset expenditure 4,362 2484
Asset ranewal expandiune 7402 T84
Agsel upgrade capenditing 3,583 4518
Total capital works expenditure 15,347 14,902

The abave stalement of capilal warks should be read in canjunction wilh he accomgparming noles
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT (cont'd
ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Ioira Shire Council
023724 Finaneial Repart
Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
Mote 1 OVERVIEW
Introduction

The: Maira Shire Councal was establshed by an Order of the Govermar in Council on 18 Movernber 1594 and & a body corprate
The Councils main allice is located al 44 Slation Sireal, Cobram.

Statemment of compliance

These fnancal statermeants are a general purpose financlal report that consists of a Comprehensive Incame Satement, Balance Shest,
Zratement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Waorks and Motas accomparying thess financial
statements. The genaral purpase finencial report complizs with the Australisn Accounsing Stardards (AA5), other authoritative
proncuncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Loce! Govermment Act 2030, and the Loca! Govermment (Flanning and
Reporting) Reguisdions 2020

The Council i= a nal-for-prafit antity and therefors applies the addiional AUS paragraphs epplicable o a not-for-profit andty urder the
Ausiralian Accounting Standards.

Accounting policy infarmation

1.1 Basis of accounting

Accounting policies are selectad and appliad in 8 manner which ensures that the resulting financial infarmatian salisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensunng that the substance of the underying trensactions or other svents is reparied. Specific accounting
palicies appbed are disclosed in saclions where the ralated balancs o financial stabamant matter is disdosed

The acorual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of thess financiel stalements, except for the cash flow infarmatian
whersby assats, ishiities, equity, ncome and expenses are recagrised in the raporing period ta which they ralate, regardlzss of when cash
is received or paid

The financial stalements are based on the histoical cost convertion unless a different measuremeant basis is spedifically dsclosed in the
nates to the financial statements.

The financial statements have besn prapared on & going concern basis. The financial sistaments are in Australisn dollars. The amaunts
presantad in tha financial statemenls have bean mundad to the nearast thousand daliars unless otharise specified. Minor discrepancias in
tables betwean fotals and the sum of compenants are due (o rounding

Judgements, astimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying velues of asssts and lshbiities that ars not readity
apparant fram alhar sources. The estimates and asscdiated judgamants are basad an prafessional judgement derivad from historical
exparienca and various cther faclors thad are balieved to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
eEimates

Resisions to accounting estimatas ans recognised in the period in which the astimate i revizad and alsein future periads thet are affacted
by tha ravisian. Judgements and assumpSions mada by management in the apolization of AAS's that hawa significant affacls on the fmancial
stalerments and astimales ralate lo
- the fair value of land. buldings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.1)
- the determinasion of dapreciation far buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (rafier to Nose 6.1)
= Ik cdgternination of employes proviskang {refer 1o Note 5.5)
= the deteerninafion of landfill provisions {refar io Note 5.5)
-the detarmination of whathar performance obligations are sufficiently spacific so a5 to delermine whathar an arrangamant is within the
scope af AASE 15 Revenue fram Cantracts with Customers or AASE 1058 fncome of Nod-for-Proft Erities (refar to Nale 3)
- tha datesmination, in accondance with AASE 16 Leases  of the kease e, the eslimation of the discount rate whean not
impdlicit in the lease and whethar an arrangament is in substance shor-term or low value (refer ta Mote 5.8)
- whedher or not AASE 1059 Sarvice Concession Amangements: Granfors is applicable
- oEfers AfeRs regquining judgements,
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Refar 1o Mole 10 for infarmalion perlaining o currend year changes n accourd palicies. Unless olhenwise staled, all alber accountirg polices
are congstent with those apphed inthe prior year, Where approprale, comparative figures have been amended o accord with curenl
presantation, and dischasure has been made of any materdal changes bo comparatives - refer to Nale 8.6

Goods and Services Tax |GST)
Ingome and expanses are recogrised nal of e amaunl of associaled GST. Receivables and payables ara slaled inclusive of the amaunl of
GET receivable of payatde, The nel amount of GST recoverable Tram, or payable to, e taxation authority 15 included with ofher recesvables
of payanles in the batance sheeal
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Mote 2 ANALYSIS OF OUR RESULTS

2.1 Perfarmance against budget

The performance against budget notes compare Council's finencial plan, expressed through fis annual budget, with ectual performancs.
The Loca! Govermment (Planning and Repartingl Reguistions 2020 requires explanation of any material variences. Coundl has edepied a
materiality threshold of the lowsr of 10 percent or 3200,000 whera further explanalion is warranted. Explanations have not been provided
for variaticns balow tha materalily threshald unlass the varance i considarad to be matarial because of its nature

Thase notas are preparad fo mesat the requiremants of tha Loca! Govermment A 2020 and the Local Governmend (Flamning and
Repoding) Reguations 2020,

2.1.1 Income | Revenue and expenditure Budget Actual Variance Variance
024 024
000 o000 o0 % Ref.
Income | Revenus
Ristes and chanpes 44,455 44 846 431 111
Slatulory faes and Nines 1.736 2002 266 183 2
User faes 2454 1470 1484) 19n 3
Granls « operaing 14,662 2.7 {12,455) 848 4
Granls - capilal 21,882 7659 114,233 (650) §
Conlributions - monalary 50 945 a58 2533 6
Contributicns - nan monetary 1.000 5445 4,445 dds T
Met gain on dispasal of progerty, infrastructurs, plant and equipment 40 SES 526 1350 &
Share of net profity (o losg] of assoclates and joied venlures . &5 &5 a
Cither incama 1954 6129 4,175 2188 10
Tatal income 48,282 TLI5T 16,226) {15.4)
Expensas
Emplayae cosls 28,303 16,155 [2,148) rE N
Materials and services 208,288 30,217 1,958 B8 12
Diepreciation 12,086 16,548 3,452 B85 13
Amortisatian - inangible assets . W k2l 1000 14
Diepraciation - ight of use assals 719 578 1141) 119.8) 15
Mlowance for impairment lossas 15 50 kL e . [
Finance costs - leases 100 ] (2 [2.m
Crhes expenses 1,180 a7 2,737 218 17
Total expenses T0,.672 T304 6,132 a8
Surplusi|deficit) for the year 17,611 {4,847} |22 458) (127.5)
{i) Explanation of material variations
Variance lem Explanation

Refarence

1 Rates and charges Increased income raceived from supplementary assassmants on new rateabls properties,

kestrside washy collechion charges 3373k and inbenes] on unpaid rales $118x
2 Statutery fees and fines Inceme derived fram higher plarming and subdivision fees recelved §356k, patialy offgel

by knwer budding fae income 5100k
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Variance ltem Explanation
Reference
3 User fees Budoet indudes propery leass income which is now reparied under Other income 5158k,
Lawer income fram gate fees at Cobram Landsll end Trensfer Stations $376k, income
from sals of raw water supplies delayad from 2022123 526k and higher Carawan Park
fans 524k,

4 Grants - aperating Commanwealh Gavernmert's Finandal Assstance Grant previoushy pad in advance was
it reaived in 202324 5129 milkon, this is partaly offsst by increased Matemal & Chid
Health grants $151k, State Governmend grants to support rollcut of new racycling
programes $231k. additional State Government grant to suppant Flaod Recowery activities
5128k

5 Grants - capital Dielays in chlzining funding body appraval far road warks impacted by the October 2022
fload avert §10.0 milion. Delays in completing capitel works projects: Y arrawanga
MultiSpaorts Stadium 52.7 millian. Bourkes Bridges Renswal §1.3 milion, Mumwrksh Flocd
Lavea Stage 1 3870k, Thompson's Baach Cobram $418k and Yarrawanga Taxiway
Compliancs Works $263h. Parialy olfsel by recognilion of granl ncems from comglalion
of projects under fe Local Roads ard Gommwunity Infrastnugture pragram $1.4 milkan

B Contributions - monstary Income from developer contributions to Councils Cpen Space Reserve 5738k

7 Cantributions - non monetary Develaper cantributians for 202324 of 55.4 milion includrg Reads, Kerb and Charned,
Foatpaths and Drainage asseats

] Met gain on disposal of Met gain on dispasal of fleet and plant replaced during 2023024 induding kems previously
property, infrastructure, butgeted ta be dspased of in price years 35264
plant and squipment

9 Share of net profits |or loss) Share of net prafit on closure of Creekside Estate Mathalia joint wanbura 5103k, partialy

of assaciates and jaint offsed by share of net lass on Goulburn Vallay Regianal Library Corporatian for 202324
ventures 5Bk
10 Other incoms Higher interest income from imvestmenls (Term Deposit) portfoiic 2.1 milion, recognition

of e=sals not praviously recardad $2.1 milicn, income from Commonwealth Govarnmant
employer incentives 330k, staff reimbursement far private use of fleet vehicles $17k,
progery lease incom previously reparied under Liser Fees $173, partialy alfse! by

| s |rderest AN On Land®ll presdsion $155%

1 Employes costs Savings fram delays in back fling vacam pastions F2.35 milion, [ower waining cosls
119K, lower Workoover pramium 5116k and lower Fringe Banefis Tax 545%. Pamaly
offaet by higher extemal contract employess S480k

12 Materials and services Budgel far Councl Commursty Granks ard Geninbutions and GYRLE contnbution $2.1
millipn reclassified fram Malerals and Sereces, Costs for Mora's respange 1o the
Cueaber 2022 Fleod Event funded from State and Commanwealth Gavernment grants
5005k, Paople and Cultura consulianis engaged to eddress issues reised in Commession
of Inguiry 8413%, higher recruitment costs $333k. This is partialy offsed by savings from
loswer uliities costs (wakar and powar} 3182k and iransfar of materials and sanices
budigat to Ciher Expenses far Local Toudsm Association paymenis.
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13 Depreciation Higher deprecialion charges on Properly, Infrastriclure, Plard and Equipmenl assels
falcraireg Increases in contribuled assels, incduding $10.2 millon in restated 2022123
accounts, and assel revaluations in bath 2022023 and 202324 financial years $3.45
milign.
14 Amartisation - intangible Landfil Arspace asset created in 2022123 accounts, ne budget allocated for amortization
assels charges §341k.
15 Depraciation - right of usa Mo new leases for replacemeant pland items drawn down in 2022023 $141k.
assals
16 Allowance far impairmant Highear alkawanca for impaired sundry deblors and allowance far infringemenls lossas
losses S35k
17 Other expenses Budget far Councl Community Grants and Contributions $2,1 milkon reclasaified from

Materias and Services. Higher Adminisirator alowances and experses than budgeted
E345k, higher contritutions to Lacal Tounsm Associations funded from matenals and
semvices oudget $176k and additional Irernal Audi fes expenses B85
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2.1.2 Capital Works Budget Actual Wariancs Variance
024 4
§000 o000 500 % Ref,
Proparty
Lard - | ]
Land imgravemerils 1.048 158 8a0) (4.9 1
Tatal Land 1,048 167 881) (84.1)
Buikdings 16,187 3323 {12.674) (195 2
Tatal buildings 16,187 1313 {12,874) {79.5)
Tatal property 17,245 3,490 {13,755) 79,8
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinary and equipment 31 3060 [54) 1.7
Fixtures, fitings and furniture . 109 10
Computers and felecammunications - 24 24
Pumps - b 30
Tatal plant and equipment 3114 31133 19 06
Infrastructure
Roads 11117 1833 [T.184) (648 3
Farb and charnnel . 462 452 4
Bridges 1418 125 (1,193 j841) §
Foatpaths and cycleways 675 77 42 B2
Drainage 2582 1.715 {87T) 38 6
Culvert and Aoodways 2606 T (2,618 Wi 7
Recreatienal, leisure and community facilifias Il 443 (454) 1812 8
‘Washs management - 254 254 2
Parks, open spact and sirestscapes 1.082 - [1,082) (100.0) 10
Aarodromes 263 45 1218) 828 M
Crher assets 1.114 152 1262) 1235 12
Tatal infrastructure 21,884 8,724 113,140) (B0.1)
Tatal capital works expenditure 42123 15,347 |26,876) {63.7)
Represented by:
Mow assel expendiute 16.908 4,362 {12,546) 1.3
Assat renewal expenditune 22814 A2 115,412) ET.E
Assat upgrade expanditure 2.4 3583 1,082 413
Tatal capital warks expenditure 42,123 15,47 |26,8TE) (ELT)
(ij Explanation af malerial vasialions
Variance ltem Explanation

Reference

1 Land Imprevements Delays in Mumurkah Flood Levee Stage 1 project $T90k and Imgation System renews

5100k
2 Buildings Dielays in Yamrawongs Muli Sports Stadium project 57,1 million and Yarrawanga Liorary

project 84,2 million, cancalatian of the Kabunga Recreation Raserve Change Rooms
project §1.2 million due to unsuccesshul grand funding bid and dalays in Yarrawanga
Dipol renewal works 5374k
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1 Roads Dhslanes in repanic wiorkss Ra roads impacted fram the Oclober 2022 Flood evenl. awailing
Stale Govemment assessment far DRFA lurding §7.2 milien

4 Herb and channel Compledan aof Kerb & Charnel renewal program budgeted in 202203 financlal year
S4B,

5 Bridges Dielays in Bourkes Bridge Renewal works 51,2 millian.

[ Drainage Delays in Lhe Cobram East Drainage Plan $540k, Yarawonga Wes! Dranage S160k,
Nathalia Draimage projects $117k and Pyke Sireed Bundalang Drainage Upgrade S50k

7 Culvert and flaadways Dol i repal woeks b roads Imgacted fram the Qctaber 2022 Flood event awailing
Siate Govemment assessment far DRFA furding $2.5 milien and Botts Road MyH
Culvert upgrade 5222k, partially offset by Culvert Renewal Progrem spend budgeted in
20EI F1ldk

] Recreational, leiswre and Gancallalion of Yarrowsyah Recreation Reserve Lighting $327k dus to unsuccessiul

community facilities Sate Govemment Turding bid and defays in commencing the Cabram Of-Leash Dog

Park praject $125k

9 Waste managemuent Gompletian of works on Resale Shop al Cobram Transfer Station 3160k and works al
walious Transher Siatiansg in preparation Tor new recyeling niiatives ok

10 Parks, open space and Delays in completing Kennedy Park - Thomasons Beach Upgrade S418k Individual

streetscapes elements af Apex Park Cobram Car Park & Landscapng projact recogrised Ineach assst

categary $664k

1 Agrodromes Delaws in the Yarrawonga Assodrome Taxiway Complance Works propect 5218k

12 Orther assets Dielays in Levee Bank Renawal project 2262
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2.2 Analysis of Council results by program

2,21 Council programs
Council dalrars ibs lunclions and acihilies lhrough tha fallowing programs.

Office of CEQ
The Cffice of CEQ pravides kzadership quidance to the business and Council and quides the development and delvery of Council's
representation and advocacy efforts.

Community

Commurity is rasponsible far warking wilh the communily, slakeholdars and pariner agencias to davelop leng-larm communily plans
that infarm Council's senice delvery acrass the Shire, Services include: matemal and child heallh, commurity safely and welbaing,
children, youth and familes, and library services. It suppans recreatonal tacibes and ather cammunity services acrass the shere, and
3 responsibla for praviding suppoert to the business plans of loeal tourism asscciatians, and plans far future taurism appantunities, It
supparts investment dedsion-making soress the Shire throwgh the altractian, growth ard innovation of existng and prospeclive
nusinasses across the Shine.

Corporate Performance

Corparate Performance ensures Coundl complies with the govemnance obiigations under the Local Govermnmenl A21 and ather
l=gislation. It administars financial condrals through management of financial senvices. sistutory finandal reperting, raising and
calaction of rates and changas end valuation of properties throughout the municipality. It aversess Council's contracting of
pracurement of goods and services and for the managamant and stratagic planning of Council's asseds including managing insurances.
Il manages Council's enlerprisa risk, all Councils recards and is the main customar inlesface wilh the communily including face-lo-lace
and priire customer service, 11 suppants and maintaing refiable and cost eflecive infamation lechrology Syslems, Taciies and
riirastructune to Cauncl ssaff erabling them te deliver services ina smart, productive and efficient way.

Infrastructure

Infrassncture I responsible for canstructing new and mantaining exsing infrastnicture across a diverse range of assels that underpin
the welbeing of the community. Thess include; roads, bridges, kerbs, drainage, parks and streetscapes and evic bulklings through
sandces including: infrastructure planning, &sset management; and capilal works engineering desion and constructian. B also
pravides waste managemend services including kerbside collections frem househelds and some commercial praperies within the
Shira. H operates nina trensfer stations and a landfil sits, including monitoring to maintain emvircrmental standards.

People and Culturs
People and Cubiure pravides sirategic and cperational people and culiure suppart including occupaticnal health and safety abligatians.
mairitaining industrial relations and developmeant and implementation of human resource strategies, palicies and procadunes.

Sustainable Development

Sustainable Developmeant processes all planning applications, pravides advice and makes dedsicns abowt development proposals that
require & planning peemit, it alss prepares and processes amandments ta the Council Planning Schamsa and pravides statutony buikding
sanvices to the Maira Shire commumity incleding processing bulding permits. audits of swimming pool bamisrs and investigations of
camplaints and ilegal works. The sanvice provides a safe and crdany anviranment within the municipality throwgh the regulation

cantrod and erforcement of lagislation and kacal laws. Services prosided include schoal crassing supandsors, domestc animal
managemind services and fing privenlion enforcement program. I develops ervdronmenlal policy, implements envinonmgnial projecs,
delivers educational programs ba the Molra commuridy and works with alber agencles 1o improve eraronment sustanabilily and natucal
FESQUFCE MANAGEMEN]

Emuergency Event Management
Program represants Mora Shira's response to recent ameargency evenls, specifically ta the Qclobar 2022 flood avent
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2.2.2 Bummary of income | revenue, expenses, assels and capital expenses by pragram

2024 Grants
Incoma ! Surplus!  included in Total
Revenue Exponsss (Deficit) income | Assets
revenLe
000 $000 f'000 §'000 000
Office of CED i 3 4E6 [3,482) - -
Cammursy 1,415 B A% 7.00m 837 .
Corparale Pedormance 45,076 25514 20,562 442 75,615
Infrastnucture 10,307 21,086 110,75%) 7043 02,635
Peagle and Culiure 7 3403 [3,376) - -
Sustainable Development 14,084 13782 kL) 510
Emangency Evenl Managemenl iE) 1208 [1.077) 152 .
T2087 TEA0 (4,847) 9,866 B78,250

Caorparate Performance indudes $35.09 millian incoma from Ganeral Rates and Municipal Charges. The cparaling income in
Infrastructure of 57.81 milion includes capilal granl incame recesed for acouisifan ar canstruction af propesty, inlrastraciure, plant and
aquipment assets

Durirg 202324, an Intemal restruciure oooured within Mora Shire ta el our pragrams o imgrove delivery of ouF erdces 1o beter
sarea the Milia community, this has resulted in a changs ta the stucture reported in EAE3,

2023 Grants
Incoma ! Surplus!  included in Todal
Revenue Exponses (Deficit)  income]  Assets
TevEnue
000 5000 §'000 §'000 000
Office of CEQ 3 4157 [4,154) - -
Chief Finamelal Office 62,651 164651 46,040 11,504 B, 237
Corporate, Govamance and Perfoemanca 285 7258 7,013 180 E
Infrstnicture Servicas 12,933 20622 (7,685 10,665 TE5, 084
Sustainable Communities 1223 14127 [1,896) 1,167 -
Disaster (Fload) Recovery 2,266 1933 383 2,266
30,402 64,788 25,61 25,782 870,311

* Refer to Noge &6 for infarmation an restatement of prior penod balance,

In ardar to betler sarde tha Maira commurity, during 202324 Maira Shire Council conducted a review of its administration and
aperations. This resulted in a change in the name of some direclorates and the reparting lings within fose drechorales. This has
resilied in & [:Ila"lﬁ-::. 1 thes rpeard ng lines 0 the above tables

Page 24 of 89



CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024

FILE NO:
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNANCE

ITEM NO: 6.1
(COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Moira Shire Council
202324 Finanelal Repert

Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Naote 3 FUNDING FOR THE DELIVERY OF OUR SERVICES

3.1 Rates and charges

Council sas Capilal Improved Vale (CIV] a5 the Basis of valustion aof al properies wifin fe municpal detrct The CIV of a prapesty = 2

walue af land and all ils improvemenls

The waluation base used to calculate general rates for 2023024 was 51184 obilien (202223 - 54,74 tllion),

Ganaral rales

Munizipal charge

Enviranmertal lewy

Service rales and charges

Supplamantary rabes and rabe adjusimants
Intarast on ratas and charges

Revanue In ey of rates

Tatal rafes and charges

2024 23
$'000 £000
7 838 26,618
6,534 6,203
2,135 2152
6,378 G600
T 29
patl! 240
230 202
44,346 47492

The date of tha peneral revaluation of lznd far rating purpases within the municipal district was 1 January 2023 and the valuation was first

applied in the rafing year commencing 1 July 2023.

Anrual ratas and charges are recogrised as income when Councl isswes annual rates noficas. Supplemantary rabes are recogrised whan a
waluation and reassessmenl is complaled and a supplemenlary rales nolice issued.

Revenue in ley of rabes includes payments made by renewable erergy gersralers (l.e. Sclar Fams)

3.2 Statutory fees and fines
Terwn planning fees

Building services lees

Lard infarmation cerfificates
Septic permit fees

Business reglstration faes
Animal registration fees and lincs
Orther statulory faes and fines
Tatal statutary fees and fines

1,022 M3
430 455
48 42
30 40
b 158
fal 210
49 5]
2,002 1.087

Slatutory tecs and Tnes (nchiding parking fees and fines) are recognised a3 incame whan thi serdce has been pravided, the payment is

resctved, of when the perally has been applied, whicheser Tiest ocours

3.3 User fees*

Leisure contne and recreation

'Wasta managament sanvices

Pubdlic hall ard pari hira fees

Surdry waorks and works within road resars fees
Caravan park charges

{Other user faes and chargas

Tatal user fees

22 ]
1,258 1635
5 184
49 40
2 280
123 76
1,970 2244

* 2023 resull rostaled, §122,000 in Rent and properly incame was reclassiod to Other incams
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2024 pitE]
User fees by timing of rewenuwe recognition 3000 §oon
User fees recopnised aver ime 5% 493
User fees recoonised at & paint in tne 1,43 1,751
Tatal user fees 1,970 1,244

User fees are recognised &3 reverue al a pant in time, or aver time, when (or as) the pefarmance abligation is salisfied. Recogrition is
nased on the underlying contrachual bamms.

3.4 Funding from ather levels of government
Grants were raceived in respect of the following

Summary of Grants
Commerrwealth funded granls 7628 21,19
State funded grants 2,437 4,584
Taotal grants received 9,865 25,783
|a) Dperating Grants
Recwrent - Commanwealth Government
Financtal Assistance Granls® B0 16,753
Recurrent - State Governmant
Community health BB &2
Community safety g2 T
Economic development and tounsm 22 Ju]
Mabemal and chid heallh 47
Recreatian, leisure and community evants L TE
Roadside weeds and pest management 85 75
School crossing supervisars 1] ]
Total recurrent aperating grants 1,703 18,357

Mom-recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Recreatian, kelsure and communily events 10
Diesaster recovary 3
Mon-recurrent - Sfate Gowvermment

Economic develepment and tourism - k3|
Comminity health . 75
Communily salety a0 -
Community sarvices and evants 2 T2
Diizaster recovery 128 2343
Wasle managemen 236 -
Othar 75 237
Total non-recurrent operating grants 204 2,058
Tatal operating grants 2,207 2,15

" 9% of Coundls 20E324 Commonwaeakh Financial Assistance Grants was received in 202223, in accardance with the requirements of fustrakan
Accoundng Standard AASE 1055 Incame of Mot-lor-Proft Entlles, the payment was recoonised &3 incame n the reperting period paymen was
recafved,

|b) Gapital Grants
Recwrent - Commanwealth Government
Roads to recovery 2,871 a7
Total recurrent capital grants 2871 2,017
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2024 23
Monrecurrant - Commonwealth Government 3000 §oon
Roads Py 368
Buldngs 175 40
Foalpaths and cycha ways 287 27
Crrainage 37 aT4
Kerb ard channgl 12 -
Recreatian, leisure and community faciiies 3,158 kLD
Mon-recurrant - Sfate Gowernment
Roads - 14}
Recreatian, keisure and community faciities 433 166
Wasle managemant 214 .
Total non-recurrent capital grants 4,788 2,352
Total capital grants 7,659 4,569

{c] Recognition of grant income

Befare recognising furding fram govemment grants &s revenue, Councdl assesses whether thara is @ confract that is anfarceshle and has
sufficiently specific perfermance coligations in accordance with AASE 15 Revenue from Confracts with Cuatamars . When bofh these
candiions are safisfied, the Counc:

-idantifies each performance chigalion relaling bo reverue under the contractagresment

- datemmines the Iransaclion price

= recofgnises a cantract labilty Tor ils abligations under the agraemenl

- FRCOgrises reverue a5 i salishies it perfomance obligalions, al the peind in ime or over Bme When Senices are rendened

‘Whera the contract i ned enforceable andior does not have sufficently speciic perfarmance abligations, the Councll apples AASE 1058
Incame of Maf-for-Profit Enfifies.

Grant revenus with sufficiently specfic performancs ohligations is recognised owsr fime as the performance obligations spacified in the
undarlyirg agraement ane mel. Whers parfarmance abligations ara nat sufficiantly specific, grants are recognised on the aarfiar of recaipt ar
whan an unconditional right to raceipt has bean astabl=hed. Granls relabing to cagilal projacts ane generally recognised prograssivaly as the
capital project & completed. The Tollowing lable provides & summarny of the accounting framewoek under which granls ane recognised

Income recognised under AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

Ganaral purpase BT 16816
Specific purposa grants to acquire norHinancial assets 7,285 -
Orther specific purpose grants e am
Revenue recognised under AASE 15 Revenee from Confracts with Customers

Specfic purposa grants 1,050 5177
Total income | revenue 9,490 25,784

|d) Unspent grants received and recognised as incame on condition that they be apent in a specific manner

Operating

Balance al start of year 3,008 984
Priar year adjustment {1,011) -
Recaived during the financial year and remained unspant at balance date iz 2 R0
Received n prioe years ared spant :Il,rlng T fircamcial yEar {B0) (L]
Balance at year and 2,128 3,008
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2024 g
Capital 000 000
Balerice af start of year 8189 5,703
Recehved during the firancial year and remained unspent at balance date e 3.241
Recaivad in prior years and spant during the inancial year (24400 (745}
Balance at year end 6,068 LR E]
3.5 Contributions
(a) Contributions - Manetary
Monetary contributiors 48 709
Tatal monetary contributions 48 ]
|b) Confributions - Non monetary®
Han menstary cantibutians: 5,445 14,13
Total non monetary contributions 5445 1411
Tatal contributions 6,233 14,840
Contabutians af non manedany essals were recaived b ralation fo the fallwing assef classas,
Lard - 3
Lard - spacializad 42 23
Bulkdings B -
Roads 1,767 3
Kerk and channs 585 273
Footpaths and cycle ways THE R
Drairage 1,855 4,408
Recreation, lelsure and community facililes 4 .
Total ron monetary contributions 5,445 1411

* Rafier o note B8 for prior period adjustmeant

Menetary and man monetary comibulions are recogrised a5 income: b eir far vaiue whaen Councdl chlaing comtral oves thi contibulid
as5el

3.6 Net galnilass) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Pracecds of sale 95 54
‘Written down valua of essals disposed |34 (402}
Net gaini{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 566 12

Tha prafil o loss on sale af an asset i recognisad whan conbrol of the asset has passad o the buyar
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2024 23
3.7 Other income* 5000 §000
Interest on investiments 3,105 1,714
Rembursements and subsdies 114 124
Legal costs recouped 7B 135
Energy rabate scheme incoma 48 TE
Sale of recyclables income 151 k]
Revaluatian af intanginle asselt {water sharss) - 262
Recagnition o assals undar Councl conlrol 2,110 E8
Rent and cther property income 143 122
Voluntesr s2ndces a7 49
Cnher income 93 141

6,229 300

Tatal other incoms

* 3023 result restated, §122,000in Rent ard propedy incame was redassifed fram Usar fees,
Intaras] is recognised as A is samac

Oither incame is measurad at the fair valus of the consideration recaived or receiveble and is recognised when Ceuncil gains contral pver the
rightt ta raceive the income.
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Note 4 THE COST OF DELIVERING SERVICES

2024 i (FE]
4.1 (&) Employes costs §'000 000
‘Wages and salaries 21,762 19,448
Bpprentices and fraineas anz I
External contract employees ETE 54
Superanruation 2,353 2132
WorkCaver orz Eak]
Fringa banefis ax e A3
COrher amplayes costs 343 245
Tatal emplaoyee costs 26,155 22744
b} Superannuation
Council mada conlibulions lo ha faliowing funds:
Accumulation funds
Emplayer contributions bo Local Authodties Suparannuatian Fund [Vision Super) 1,241 1422
Empiayer contnbutions - other funds 1,112 70
Tatal 2353 2132
Emplayer conlributions payable ol reporting dale 45 4
Reder to note 9.3 for further information refating to Council’s suparannuebon obligatons.
4.2 Materials and services®
Buiking mainlenanca 1,087 w7
Community and recrestian 2120 2,918
Consultants 1,268 1,861
Ganeral mainlenanos 3,182 4,895
nformation tachnalogy 2110 1,690
NEUFENCE 1,202 1,098
Leoal expanaas 445 402
Qutober 2022 Mood evenl expenses 950 1461
Cfice administration 2,368 2,208
Plant and flest expensas 1,661 1,543
Requlasary services 260 243
Utilities 298 501
'Wasta management 6,605 5321
Tatal materials and services 047 24,057

* 2023 resuli restated, & raview of the mabanials and services clessifications resulied in & change to the 2023 result induding expandiure
related o Coundls community contibulions, grants and donations and GYRLC Library conlribution being raclassifed a= othar expansas
52167000,

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reperied in the financial year to which they relate,

4.3 Depreciation

Brapesty 2048 1,564
Pllanl and equipmen 1,513 1,068
nirastnsciure 12,188 9,768
Tatal depreciation 15,548 12,176

Beder lo note 8.7 Tor & mane delailed breakdown of deprecialion chanmes and accounling paicy.
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4.4 Amortisation - intangible assets
Lardfill cell airspace
Tabal Amortisation - intangible assets

4.5 Depreciation - right of use assets
T equipment

Plant

Tatal Depreciation - right of use assets

4.6 Allowance for Impairment losses
Sundry debilors

niringamant deblors

Tatal allowance for impairmant lesses

Movemert in allowance for impairment losses in respect of deblors
Balarca al the baginning af the year

Mew alowances recognisad during lhe year

Amounts slready allowed for and weilten off as uncollectible

Balance af end of year

2024 i
000 000
M1 BOB
3 809
40 52
o368 GO
578 58
FE] .
27 16
50 16
70 &7
50 15
(13) 12
107 70

An allowance for impairment losses in respect of deblors is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both
historic and forward baoking information in detarmining tha leval of mpaimeant.

4,7 Barrowing costs

nteres! - bamowings

Less capilaised barowing costs on quakfying assets
Tatal borrowing costs

Barroraing costs ang recoghised a5 an expenss in the perod in which they are incurned

4.8 Finance casts - leases
nleres! - laasa liabilities
Tatal finance costs - leases

4.9 Other expenses”

Auditars’ remunaration - VAGD - audd of tha financial stalements, perfemanca stalement and

grant acouitials

Buditors' remuneration - Intemal audt
Communily confribulions, grants and sponsorships
GVRLE Bbrary confribution

Councillars and Administrators ellowances
Commission of Inquiry inta Maira Shire Councl™
Urminding af discount on provisicns™

Refurds of rates

‘aolurieer sanices

Rewaluation of intanghle assals

Crihess

Tatal other expenses

E L] 4

33) (12}

. 12

t -] 17
a8 117
62 53
138 53
1,410 1,347
B3R B20
742 356

- 422

54 {1,274}

n an
7 48
M .
79 36
3317 7,699
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* 2023 resull rostaled, expendlvre refaled Lo Councl's communily conbribulions, granls and denalicns $1,347,000 and GVRLC fbrary
coniribution 3820, 000 were reclassifed from matenals and services

Counedl,

** Change in dscount rate maodel in 2022123 realized a credit adustment 1o the future value of the pravision required for Cauncil's landfil
Bee Mote 5.5
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Note 2024 2023

Motz § INVESTING IN AND FINANCING OUR OPERATIONS 000 £'000
5.1 Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash en hand S 5
Cash at bank 1,659 3,995
Depasils - ol call 3000 5,000
Total cash and cash equivalants 4 664 4,000
(s} Cther financial assets
Currant
Term deposits 51,000 57,000
Total ather financial assets 51,000 57,000
Tatal cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets 55,664 56,000

Cash and cash equivelents indude cash an hand, deposils at call, and cther highly liquid investments with anginal maturities of three
muanths or bass, nat of outstanding bank pverdrafls.

Oiher inancial assals are valuad al fair value, al balance date. Term deposils are measured al orginal cost. Ary unrealsad gains and
losses on holdings al balanoe date are recogrised a5 either 8 rvenue of gipense

(ther firanclal assets inclde term depesits and thase with original maturity dates of three 1o 12 menths are cassified as current, whilst
temn depasits with matunty dates graater than 12 months are classified as non-cument.

{c) Trade and ather receivables

Current
Slatulovy recekables
Rates debtors 4,704 3521
Fire servicas levy deblors 428 335
Infrirgemment debtars B4 84
Allowance for axpacied cradit loss - infringamants (B1) [G8)
Met GST receivable FIL Fak
Mon-siafutory recedvahlas
Other deblors a1 {d} 3 B3
Allawanca far axpacied cradit loss - other dabtars (26] 1]
Total current trade and other receivables 5734 4884

Short berm recetvables are camled al imvolee ameount, An allowance far expected credt lasses s recogrised based on past experlence and
other objective evidence of expected losses. Long term recelvables are camied at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

(d} Ageing of Receivables
The: ageing of the Counci's Irade & other recelvables (excluding statulory receivables) that are ot
IFgaIrad was

Currant [not yat dus) 209 a7
Past due by up to 30 days ki 52
Past due between 31 and 180 days 32 il
Total trade & other receivables 151 203
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() Ageing of individually impaired Recaivables

Al balance date, othar detors repressnting financial assels wilh & nominal value of §23, 367 (2023; $MI} wers impaired. The amount of the
allowanca raised against these debiors was 523,387 (2023 3NIf. Thay indiidually hawe baan impaired a5 a resull of their doubtful colaction, Mary
of he lang cutatandng past due amounts have been ladged with Councils debt collectons of ane an paymerd Arangemeants,

2024 2023
§'000 §'000
The aeing of receivables thal have hean rdividualy detemingsd & mpained 3 reporn n dabe wis
Pasl due betwean 31 and 180 days 23 -
Total trade & other receivables 23 -
{f) Contract assets
Contracl Assals 2,080 1,105
Total contract asseis 2,080 1,105

Coniract assets are recrgnised when Crouncil has fransfemed gaeds of services o the customes bul where Coundil is yeL 1o establish an
uncerditioral nght o consideration

5.2 Mon-finaneial assets

{a) Inventaries
Irmearitarias hald for distrbution T8 E5E
Total inventories T3 B66

Irvertores bekl far disinbution ane meaguned a coas, adshed when applicabls far any loss ol Sepvion palential, Where ifeanbanes are
abquired for o cost of nominal conskerabon, '.rll':'_n' are measured at current I'E‘['Il?li‘:ﬁl’l'lﬁm cixsd a8 the date of acquisition,

(b} Other assets

Pregpaymens 187 56
Accrwed incame - inlenes| 1,208 a4
Ioira Recreation Committess assats® 560 553
Tatal ather assets 2,045 1,893

Accrwed infarest income refars 1o the inberes! receivable as at 30 Jura 2024 on lerm dapesits that has nal yal been paid.
* Moira Recreation Committees ars essats held in the nams of individual commitiees on behalf of Council.

(&) Intangible assels

Water share antilements” 1103 3544
Landfil cal airspace 1406 3,398
Tatal intangible assets 6,589 [Aal]
Water share  Landfill Coll Total
entitlements alrspace
Gross earrying amaunt 000 000 £'000
Balance at 1 July 2023 3334 7487 10,811
Fair velue adjustment [221) 4352 211
Balance at 30 June 2024 1103 7019 11,022
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Water share  Landfill Cell Total
entitlements alrspace
Acewmulated amortization and impalrment 000 000 5000
Balance al 1 July 2023 - 4082 4,092
Amortisafion expense - E2a kS
Balance at 30 June 2024 - 4,433 4,433
el book value al 30 June 2023 3,334 3,335 6,719
Met book valus &t 30 June 2024 3103 1486 6,589

Irtangible assets with firite lives are amortised as an expense an a sysbemalic basis over the asset's useful life, Amortisation is genaraly
calculated on & straight Bne basis, &t & rate that ellocates the asset velue, less any estimated residual velue over its estimeted usedul lifz.
Estimates of the remaining wsehd lives and amertisation methed are reviewed al least annually, and adjestments made whears spproprista.

* A water share enfiiemeant is an angaing entitlement 1o a share of the water avalzble in the Goubum and Murray waler systems. 1 gives
Itaira Bhire a right to share of water in the syslem. Maia Shire's water entilements were valued as st 30 Juna 2024 by Wes Ridd (AP
Member 62427) of Preston Rows Paterson Shepparion.

2024 2023
5.3 Payables, trust funds and depasits and contract and ather Rabilfies §'000 §'000
(a) Trade and ather payablas
Current
Mon-siafufory payables
Trada payables 457 ERY|
Accreed axpenses 3,365 2,303
Tatal current trade and other payables 3,852 2,644
(b} Trust funds and deposits
Current
Refundable deposits 2,108 2182
Flre services ey 287 1067
Ratantion amounts 05 1449
Tatal current trest funds and deposits 4,520 3,338
{c) Contract and ather labilities.
Contract liabilitles
Current
Granits received in advance - aparating 13 =)
Granits received in advance - capita & 060 8199
Ratas craditars rates paid in advance) T8 L
Total contract liabilities 6,860 9,066

Trusf funds and deposils

Arncunts received as depasits and refendian amaunts contralled by Council are recognised &3 frust funds until they are returmed,
transferred in accordanca with the purpase of the receipt, or forfaited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in Coundil gaining contral of
the funds, are o be recopnised as revenue at the ime of farfait.

Conlract Fabiflies

Comlract labdites reflecl consideratian receivved n advance from cuslomers in respect al caplal warks :jm_leuls and cperaling programs
anplicable o mare than ane inancial year. Coatract labditles are derecognised and recorded as revenye when promised qoads and
senvices are transferred 1o the customer, Refer to Mote 34
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Purpase and nature of items

Fire senaces levy

Council is the cellection egent for fire servicas lewy an behall of the Stata Govammant. Council ramits amounts recaived an a guarlerdy
basis. Amounks disclosed hara wil be remitled to the State Govammant in line with that process.

Retention amounis

Council has a contractual right 1o relsin cerlain amaounts unlil & contracior has met cerlain requirements or a relaled warrant or defect
panod has elapsed. Subgect bo the satisfactory completion of the conlractual obligations, ar the elapsing of fme, (hase amaunts wil ba paid
L Wb ralessant condractor in line with Councils conlractual abligatons.

2024 2023
5.4 Interest bearing Rabilfties §'000 §'000
Currant
Traasury Corparation of Viclona bormawings - secured 135 4E
Ctier Barowings - secured
Total current interest-bearing labilities 135 46
Mon-current
Treasury Camporation of Vieloria borrawings - secured 1,349 466
Tatal nan-current interest-bearing Nabilities 1,343 466
Total 1,484 51l
Barowings are sacured by Council rale raverue. Relar lo Nole 5.6 Tor Councils fnancng arangemenls.
(A) The maturity profile far Council's bomawings is
Mot kaler than one year 135 4
Laler than ore year and nol ler than live years ()] 230
Laler then five yaars 574 218
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,484 512

E!«urrcmwgs are irtealy mesasured ab fair value, being the cest of The inbenes] bearing laniites, nel of Fansaction costs The e asuirement
basls subseguent to inital recognitien depends an whathar the Councll has cateqorised 55 Interast-nearng lablines &3 aither financlal
linkilities dasignated &t far value fraugh the prafit and kss, or financial Eabilges et amorised cast. Any difference between the initial
recognised emeunt and the redamption valus is recegnised in nat resulf ovar the pericd of the barowing w=ing the effectivs intarast
methad.

Tha classification dapands an the nalure and purpase of the interest baaring liabiities. The Coundl datermines the classification of ils
inbarest bearing Rabiles at inilial recognilicn
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5.5 Provisions

Employes Landfill Todal
rstaration
2024 $'000 $'000 §'000
Balancs at beginning of the financial year 5,475 8747 15,222
Additicnal provisions 649 a2 1,221
Amounts used T35 130} 1BaE5)
Change in the discounted ameunt artsing because of ime and the effect " &
of &y chanos in the discount rate
Balance af tha end of the financial year 5,339 10,233 15,632
Privdgions - curment 3,065 4,062 T47
Prowisions - non-cumenl 314 BT 8,485
Total Provisions 5,339 10,233 15,632
Employse Landfill Todtal
restoration
FilFE] 5000 §'000 §'000
Balanes at beginning of the financa year 5472 11,4469 16,841
Additional prosisions TaE - a8
Amounts used (B85 - (B85
Prowision revaluation . [448) 448
Change in the discounted amount arising because of ime and the effect ) '
of micl‘anga in the discount rate ! - {1.274) (1.274)
Balance at the end of the financial year 5475 5,747 15,122
Prowisions - curment 5,158 1,500 [#::]
Prisdsions - non-cument el B247 8,531
Total Provisions 5475 9,747 15,121
2024 2023
{a) Employee provisions §'000 §'000
Current provisions expectad to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 1,220 1,260
Annual leawe loading 150 138
Rostarad days off 205 236
Lang servica leave 2,885 2,588
4,440 4 E21
Current pravisions expected to be whally settled after 12 manths
Annual leave 645 560
645 560
Total currant employes provisions 5,085 5188
Mon-current
Lang servics leames 3 256
Total nan-current empleyes provisions 34 286
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2024 023
Aggregate camying amount of employee provisions: 000 5'000
Current 5,085 5,188
Mon-currenl a4 286
Total aggregats carrying amount of amployes provisions 5,309 5475

The calculation of emplayes costs and benefits includes all relevant er-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting dale,

Annual [save

& lishility for ennual leavs is recognised in the pravision for employee benefils as & current lisbiity because the Council does nod hava an
unconditisnal fight to defer sattlement of the liabiity. Liabdities for annual laave are measured at:

= narminal valis il the Council expects lo whally sellie b liabilily within 12 months

= present value il the Council does nal expect o wholly seflle within 12 manths,

Liahilties that ane nal expectad to be whally setted within 12 manths of the reparing date are recagnized in the provision for employes
benafits &2 current lishiities, measured &t the present velus of the amounts expacted to bs paid when the lisbiities are setled using the
remuniration rate expacled o apply 8t the time of setilement.

Larg senioe leave

Lisbibty Tor Img gendce keave [LSL] 15 recogrised in the provision for emploves berefits, Uncerdiional LSL s daclesed as a aiment
llability &5 the Councl dees not have an uncondbional right to deder seftlemeant, Unconditional LSL Is measured at nomingl vakie if expected
to b seftled within 12 manths or at present value if not expected 1o be setdied within 12 manths, Conditicnal LSL that has been accrued,
whera an employee is yet ta reach & qualfying tam of employment. is disclsed &= 3 non-current kability and measurad at prasent velus.

24 faikad

Key assumptions: % %

[geaurt rabe” 441 4,083

Wage inflalion rata” 4,450 4380
* Sowrce: Depanment of Treasury and Finance Victoria
(b Landfill restoration
Currant 2,082 1,500
Mor-cumen BAT1 8247
Tatal 10,233 49,747

Gouncil ks obligated Lo reston: Cabram Landgiil sibe to a paricular standard,  The forecast lite of the sibe is based on current eslimates of
remaining capacity and the Towmeast rate of infll, The provision far Bncfil restoration has been calculated based on the presem valug of the
enpeched cogt of works to be undestaken, The expected cost of works has been estimated based on curent understanding of work
required to reinstate the site o a suitable standard. Accordingly, the estimatian of the provision required = deperdert on the accuracy of
the farecest fiming of the work, work required and related costs.

Council reviews tha landfill restoration provision on an annual basis, including the kay assumplions Estad below:

024 ikl
Key assumptions! % %
- discount rate” 5039 -5885 5156 -50526
- inflation rata®* 275 300

Saurce: * Milliman Group 100 discount rates
" Reserve Bank ol Susiralia - long berm inflation langel
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5.6 Financing arrangements

Council has the following funding arangements in place as &t 30 June 2024

Credit card facilities
Treasury Corparalisn of Vicleria facillies
Total facilities

Used facilities
Unused facilities

Council dozs nat have an averdraf faciity.

&7 Commitmants

2024 2023
§000 3000
108 96
1,483 511
1,501 &0
1,502 538
i 70

The Cowncil has antarad inte the Tollewing commitments. Commilmends are not recognisad in the Balanca Sheel. Commiiments ars
dizclozad al their nominal value and presantad incusiva of tha GST payable

Commitmants for expanditura

Later than 1 Later than 2
Mat later than year and not ars and Later than
w4 1 year Plalarlhan n::mutm;n S years Total
2 yoirs 5 years

Operating 000 £000 5000 §000 5000
Kemmside landsll, recycing and organic wasse colection® 2681 1,926 6,101 2146 12,854

Compulers and talecommunicalions e B 1,555 487 3556

Maintanance and securily af Council buidings 204 a9 T - 380

Cleaning of Council buldings 177 . . 177

Ermironmental management T T 1,060 2518

Recraalion laciltias managemenl 1.1 1,152 1,184 35T

Other 516 kil 215 - 1,058

Tatal 6,333 4,872 10,192 2,613 24,010

Capital £'000 £000 $'000 §'000 §'000
Buiding design and conslruction L] - - 8528
Plant and aquipmant 1,326 - - 1,326
Roads 1668 2,550 Ta% THE
Tatal 13,522 2,958 T80 17,270

Later than 1 Lafter than 2
Mot [ater than year and nat arg and  Later than
L 1 year vlaterlhan n:lflmman 5 years Total
2 years 5 years

Operating §000 000 5000 §000 000
Karbside waste cobaction and landfill managemant® 280 1122 . : 3,172

Compiters and felecommunicalions il 00 BTt 2,064
Maintenance and securty af Coundl buldngs 167 o4 a3 144
Claaning of Council buidings 208 - - e
Erwvironmental management 683 633 1,734 3,061

Recreatian factifies maragement 1314 137 4,059 6,700

Other services 388 219 26 £33

Total 6,103 4,1 6,578 16,782

© A new contract entered inta for Kerbaide lardfill, recycling and arganic waste collection commencing in Decemiber 2024,
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Later than 1 Later than 2
Mot later than year and not  years and  Later than §
s 1 year later than 2 not later than years Total
years 5 years
Capital
Buidng design and construction 915 a2 - - 1,737
Roads 2AM 1617 . - 4,041
Tatal 3,339 2439 - - 5,778
5.8 Leases

AL inceplion of a conlract, Councl assesses whether a confracl is, or confaing, a lease. A conlract &= or conlains, a lease i ha conlract
comviys the right ba control the use ol an identified assat far a periad of Sme in exchange for consideration, To idenlify whether a contract
ceeviys the rioht ba contrel thie use of an identfied assat, It s necessary to asgecs whethers

- The confract ineahéas the use of an identified assat;

- The: custamer has the nght fo abtain substantially &l of the ecanamic benefits from use of the asset throughaut the pesicd of use; and

- The custamer has the nght fo direct the usa of the assat.

This palicy Is applied fo contracts entered into, of changed, on or &fler 1 July 2079,

Az 3 lessen, Coundl recognises a right-of-use asset and 2 lease kabilty at the lease commeancement data, The right-of-use asset = inifially
muaasurad al cosl which comprisas tha inilial amaunt of the leasa liabsdily adjusled far:

ary ledse paymants made al of betore the commencement dabe kess any leake incentives received, plus

any Initial drect costs ncurmed, and

an esimate of costs to dismante and remove the undeslying asset of to regtore the underying asset or the site on which it s

located

The right-cd-use asselis subsequently amorised wsing B straight-line method from the cammencemen dabe o the earier of the end of
e sl ife of the right-of-use asset ar the end of fe lease term. The estimated useful bues of dghl-okuse assels ane determined on the
same hasls as those of praperty, plant and equipment, In addition, the right-of-use asset ks pedodcaly reduced by mpalment losses, if
any, and adusted for cafain measurements of the leass liability.

The lazsa liability is initially maasurad al the prasent valua of tha lease payments that ara nat paid al the commencement date, discountad
using the irterest rate implicd in the bease or, if that rate cannet be readily datesmined, an appropriate incremental borrawing rata.
Generally, Councll iges an appropriale incremental barrowing rale as the discount rate

Laase payments induded in the measurement of the lease lisbiily comprise tha folowing:
Fixed paymenls;
Varlable lease payments that depand on an indest of & rate, inftlally measured using te index or rate as af the
commencement date;
Ameunts expected 1o be peyable under & residugl value gquarantes; and
The gxercise price under @ purchase apfion thet Cauncl is reascnably certain to exardse, leasa payments in an opticnal
ranewal period if Council i reasonably cartain fo exercisa an extansion colicn, and penallies for early tarmination of a leasa
urdass Council is reasonably certain not 1o terminate aary.

When tha lease liabdily is remeasurad in this way, a cormasponding adjusiment is mada to the camying amount of the right-of-use assat, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carmying @mcount of the right-of-usa g==st has baen reduced fo zero.

Undar AASE 16 Leases, Council as & nol-for-prafit entity has alacted nat ko measura right-of-use assats atini@ial racognition at fair value in
respact of leases Pat hava signfcanty below-marked bems.
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Plant T Tatal
Equipment
Right-of-Use Assets 5'000 §'000 5'000
Balance at 1 July 2023 2,450 34 2514
Addilions 25 . 25
Trans=far to Moia assets [145) - [145)
Deprecation chare [538) iy [5T8)
Balance at 30 June 2024 1,822 54 1,876
2024 2023
Lease Linhilitios §'000 §'000
Maturity anakysis - contractusl undiscounted cash fiows
Less than ane year 485 218
Qe to five years 1,482 2,085
Itora than Nive yaars - 9
Total undiscounted lease lizbilities as at 30 June: 1,547 2,30
Lease Eabibas includad in lha Balance Sheet al 30 June:
Currant 465 T8
Mon-currernd 1,482 1,548
Total lease liabilities 1,547 2,656

Shorl-term and low value leases

Council has electad not 1o recagniss right-cé-use assets and leass liabilies for short-lerm leases of machinary that have a leasa tam of 12
manths or kass and leases of low-value assels (ndividual assels worlh bass than exisling capitakisation thresholds far a like asset up o a
maximum of AUDE10.000), including IT eguipmanl. Council recognesas ha lease paymants associaled with thesa laases as an axpanse on
a slraighiline bass aver he leage lerm

Expenses ralating to:
Leases of baw value assels 230 141
Tatal 230 141

Non-cancellable lease commitments - Shortterm and low-value leases
Commitments far mirimum |easa payments for shor-term and low-value leases are paysble as follows:

Within ane year 1o 71
Laler than cre year bul mat ater tham e years 120 70
Total lease commibments 230 141
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Note 6 ASSETS WE MANAGE

6.1 Praperty, infrastructure, plant and equipment

pPJuod) INJN3ILVIS

JONVINHNO43d ANV LOd3N TVIONVNIL ¥2/€20Z 3HL 40 NOILVIIdILH3D

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Carrying  Additions  Contributions Found Revaluation Dispesal  Write-offs Transfers  Depreciation Carrying
amount amaunt
0 June 2023 30 June 2024
§000 5000 000 b0 §000 000 §'000 000 §000 000
Property* 230,584 1,208 48 - 7808 - - 118 (2,048 247,088
Plant and Equipment 5,329 3,133 - - - (349} - B3 (1313 6,865
Infrastniclure” 531,911 6,114 5,396 2110 4085 - - 2B81 {12,186 40111
Work in progress B,261 4,801 - - - - [1437) 131084} - B.561
Total 785,084 15,347 5445 2110 11,983 (349) [1.437) - (15,548 802635
Summary of Work in Progress
Opening WIF  Additions Write Off Transfers  Closing WIP
£000 £'000 51000 000 £000
Praperty 2,560 2,191 . (318} 4433
Pland and Equipment 65 - - {ES) -
Infrastructure 5,636 2,610 {1437) {2681} 4128
Tolal 8,261 4,801 {1.437) {3064} 8,561

Hoday |eloueuld [enuuy $20Z - 14vdd - [1] ON LINTJWHOVLLY

* Rafar 1o Mote 8.6 for information an restabement of price period balanca.
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() Property

Al tair value 1 July 2023
Accumulated depracialion at 1 July 2023

Mawements in falr value
Adcfians

Canlributians
Revaluation*

Dispasal

Transles

Mavements in accumulated depreciation
Depreclation charge

Revaluation

Dispasal

Transfers

Al taif value 30 Jure 2024
Accumulated depracialion at 30 Juna 2024
Carrying amount

Motes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Land - Land - Land Total Land  Bulldings - Total Work In Tatal
specialised” non  improvements non  Buildings Progress Property
specialisad specialised
$000 000 000 000 000 §'000 000 000
FrRFH 117382 B 140,168 176,753 178,753 2860 319,481
- : 150} (50) [T7.267) {77.287) [77,337)
2272 117,352 a4 140,118 09 465 99,466 2 5D 242,144
. 158 158 1141 1,141 219 3,490
42 - 42 [ B 41
3,061 3,061 BIT4 ETTd 11,835
. - - EL] kil (318} -
3,103 158 3261 10,239 10,239 1873 15,373
i#) i {2,045) [2,045) (2,049)
. . (3,937} (3.937) (3,937
. - (4} 14 15,482 [5,982) . (5,986)
25,825 17510 B 143429 186,952 186,992 4433 134,854
- - 154} (54) (83,269} |B3,268) - [83,323)
25,525 117,510 Lli} 143,375 103,723 103,723 4423 251,531

* Rerter to Mk B.5 for informnalion on restatement of pror penied balance

Hoday |eloueuld [enuuy $20Z - 14vdd - [1] ON LINTJWHOVLLY
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() Plant and Equipment

Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Plant Fiulures Computers Pumps™ WorkIn - Tedal plant
machineny fittings and and Progress and
and furniture Telacommunicat gquipment
equipment ions
£'000 5000 000 000 §000 $'000
Al fair value 1 July 2023 8448 200 2083 1451 5] 10,528
Accumulaed deprectation at 1 July 2023 (4,057 {117y (218} (T42) - [5,134)
4,582 B3 i g B 5,194
Mavements in fair value

Additians 3,060 10 H Klt] 313
Faurel . - - . .
Dispasal 1,323 [1,323)
Transfers L3 - |ES} -
1,502 10 4 KE] (=] 1,810

Mavements in accumulated depreciation
Dapraciation charge (1,208) {19) (33 (56] [1.13)
Dispasal ar4 - - - 74
Transfers - - - - -
(231) {13} {33 (36 {339)
Al fair value 30 Juna 2024 10,251 210 nr 1,560 12,338
Accumulatad depracialion at 30 Juns 2024 [4,288) (138) (281} (788 [5A4T3)
Carrying amount 5,953 T4 E6 762 6,885

" Pumps presiously classilied as part of drainage

Hoday |eloueuld [enuuy $20Z - 14vdd - [1] ON LINTJWHOVLLY
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(e} Infrastructure

Al fair value 1 Juby 2023
Accumulated depraciation at 1 July 2023

Mawvements in fair valus
Additions

Faurd

Cantributians®
Ravaluation®

Trensfers

Mawements in accumidated depreciation
Dapraciation charge

Faund

Revaluatian

Tramsles

Al fair value 30 Juns 2024
Accumulatad depraciation at 30 June 2024
Carrying amount

Motes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Reads Eridges Kerb and Foolpaths and  Draimage™ Culverts  Recrealional, Wasle
Channel Cycleways and lebsure and  Management

Floodways community

facilities
$000 5000 000 $000 §000 §'000 000 $000
358,159 49,872 BE026 43,824 84004 18,165 15,684 12,584
{58,301) (16.545) (21.262) (84200 (23,850} [5.451) (B.225) 18,422)
299,858 33,356 64,764 34404 60,354 12684 11463 4172

3,77 132 30G T 217 T8 3T

- 1419 5 - -

1,767 - 985 THE 14865 . 4
11,668 1457 (28,802} (2T 7764 [35) 132 -
1,146 - 177 62 164 26 435 554
18,360 1,584 [26.918] 1,986 10,004 [ ] 554
(7.366) 379y {1,163} [204) (854} (178) (746} (193]

G55 (507) 10,220 3570 {1,008] 16 (80}

[G,401) (BEE) 5051 2 GEE (1,902} (158) (86} [193)
406,519 51,461 58,108 45810 84,008 18,234 20 5% 13,148
{54,702 (17.432) (12211} (6,754) (25,552} [5,640) 18,051} (8,615
BT 05 46457 39,056 6B 456 12,594 11,545 4533

* Reler to Mole B for infarmalion on resialemen of prior period balance

** Pumps previousky classified a5 parl of drainage

Hoday |eloueuld [enuuy $20Z - 14vdd - [1] ON LINTJWHOVLLY
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(¢} Infrastructure (cant.)

Al tair value 1 July 2023
Accumulatad depracialion at 1 Juky 2023

Mawements in fair value
Addfions

Fourd

Cantributians*
Revaluation™

Translens

Mawements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge

Faurd

Revaluation™

Transfers

Al fair value 30 Juna 2024
Accumulatad depracialion at 30 Juns 2024
Carrying amount

Motes to the Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2024

Asrodromes Otther Work In Tatal
Infrastructure Progress  Infrastructure

£'000 5000 000 $000
537 16,372 5,636 T24ETS
{175) {5.845) 187,328)
358 10,527 5,636 537,547
561 2610 874

- - 2110

5308

(5) - (9,081)

4 14,119 (1,437)

660 {1.509) 5702

(18] (344} (12,186
13178

(18] (344 : 990
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CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [1] - DRAFT - 2024 Annual Financial Report

Muoira Shire Council
202334 Financlal Report
Motes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024
Acguisition

The purchasa methad of accounting is used far all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at
the date of acquisition plus any intidental costs atiibuleble to the acquisition. Far value is the prce that woul be received to sl an
asset {or paid 1o transfer a liability) in en ordady transaction betwean marke! paricipants at the measurement dats. Redar also fo Note
8.4 for further dizclosura ragarding fair value maasurement

‘Whene assels ane constnucled by Coundl, cast inclides all materials used in consinaction, direct lanoeur, hl:-'r[‘.'wl"lﬁ Casts incumed
during canstrsction, and an appropriate share of direcy attributable variable and fived puetheads,

1 accardance with Counal's policy, The hreshold lirss have applied when fecegnising Assets within an applicable assel class and
unless athersise slabed are consisient with e pror year,

Assef recagnition threshalds and useful lives

Usaful Life Threshald
Limit

Proparty §'0o0
Land
- Larg
- Lend wnder roads -
Lard Imginavemens 10t 100 years 5.0
Buikdings 65 to 90 years 5.0
Plant and Equipment
Blant, meachinery and equipment T yearng 25
Fixtures, fitings and furnibure T o 25 years 20
Pumps 30 years 50
Infrastricture
Seeled roads
- roag seals 14 years 50
= road pavemen 25 to B0 years 50
Unzaaled roads
- road pavemen! 15 ta 25 years 50
Laraways
- Cancrate 100 years 50
- bilumnen 18 years 5.0
Bricges
- Himber &0 years 50
= stoed and concrels 150 years 50
Footpaths and cycle ways
- COmCTRlE 6l yaars 50
- gravel 20 years 50
- hitumen 30 years 5.0
« bk 4 years a0
Drrainage
- I avains S b V00 years 5.0
Culverts and Aood ways
- culvarts gnd food ways 100 years 50
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Useful Life Threshald
Limit
§'000
Kerh and channel
- harh g charned T4 years 5.0
- braffic islands 5l yeaurs 50
Recreational, |leiswre and community facilitizs
- playground equipment 20 years 20
Parks, open spaca and stragtscapes 10 ta 100 years 50
Asrocromes 100 b 00 wears 20
‘Wasta Maragemenl 10 to 100 years 50
Crher infrastructure assets 10 ta 100 years 50
Lang undar roads

Council recognises land under roads if conlrols &t fair value,

Depracistion

Buikings, land impravements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and ather assets having limited useful lives are systematicaly
depreciated over their ussful lives fo the Councl ina marmer which reflacts consumption of the servica potential embodied in thoss
assets. Estimatas of ramaining useful lives and residugl values are made on & reagular basis with major asset classes reassessad
anmually. Depracialion rales and methods are reviewsd annually.

Read eartworks ane pat deprecaated on e Basis hal they are asessed as not haing & bmiled uselul life

‘Whare azzals have separale identifiable componenis that are subjacl to regular replacament, these components are assigned
distinct usaful ives and residual valuas and a separata dapreciation raba is dalermined for sach component.

Siraight ne depreciation i charged based on the remaining wssh life as detsmmined each year.
Depraciation pedods usad ane listed abave and are canslstent with prior year unless othersise statad

Reapars and mamenance
‘Whare tha repair relates to the replacement of & component of an assst and the cost excesds the capitaisation threshald the cost is
capilalised and dapredialed. Tha cammying value of the raplaced assal is axpensed.

Valuation of land and buildings
The clabe ard type of Fe curment valuation 15 delaied in The following lakle

Lavel 1 Loval 2 Loval 3 Date of Type of
§'040 000 5000 Valuation  Valuation
Lared - speciaksed - - 5825 L0 Ireliex
Lard - nan spacialisad - - 117 510 1272022 Full
Lard impravements - . 4 D202 Full
Buikings - non speciaised - - 103,723 a0 Index
Total - - 247,08
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Diedails of Coural's lard and buildings ard informatian aboul the Tair value hierarchy a5 al 30 June 2024 arg a5 Tollows:

Land assets wers valued by Marcus Hann (48P of LG Valsalion Services Ply Lid a5 al 1 Decernber 2022, The valaalion of land is
al fair valie being markel value based on highest and best uge permitlid by refevant land planning priddsions, The valualion prooess
Irvahved an inspection af each assed to kentify and value each property's fair value

Land under Roads wene valsed a5 88 30 Jurme 2034 by a team of in-house professaana stalf in accardance with the “Englabo
Meshod” of caleulation provided n the Department of Planning and Cammunity Development Clrcular 15111, The Englaba Methad of
waluation of land under roads is a calculalion based an the area of the unimprosed value of al land within the municipabity discounted
by 80% multiplied by the area of land undar roads.

Any significant mavements in the unabservablke inputs for land and land under roads wil kave a sigrafcant impact on the tir value of
hess gsssts,

Buildings were walued as at 30 June 2024 based on indexation calculation. A unit rate and effective Ife review conducted by a tzem
of in-house professional siaff.

Valuation of infrastructure
The date and type of te curent waluation |s dataled in the following tabls,

Leved 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Date of Type of
£'000 000 000 Valuation Valuation
Roads - - KRR D624 Iz
Bridgas - - 3 02 D024 Il
Karb and channel - - 46 897 2024 Full
Footpaths and cycle ways - - 39,056 2024 Full
Dirainage - - B8 456 0 Full
Cidvents and Flﬂlxlways - - 12 B4 DEA0E Fidl
Rerealional, leisure and communily Taciliies - - 11,545 D024 Inde
'Wasta Management - . 4533 C2020 Full
Crher Infrastrecture - - 10,843 [T Index
Total - - 539,770

Dietails of Coundl's infrestnucture assets and information about the fair valus hierarchy as at 30 June 2024 ara & follows:
The waliaticn |5 3 far valie based on cirrent replacement cosl less accumudaled deprecialion &3 al the date af wakiabicn,

Roads wara valuad as at 30 June 2024 based on indaxation caloulation. & uni rate and effective s review conducted by a taam of
ir-hause profassional slaf,

Bridges wore valued s at 30 June 2024 based onirdexation calgulation. A unit rate and efective lile review conducted by & team
af In=hause professian staff

Kerb and channel were valied as at 30 June 2034 based an g condilion assassment sonductsd by Assel Lab Ply Lid. & unil rate
and effective life review conducted by a team of inhouse professional staff.

Footpaths and cycle ways wara valued as al 30 June 2024 based on & condition assessment conducted by Assat Lab Pty Lid. &
unit rate and affactive life review condwctad by a team of in-houss professional staff.

Drainage assets were valued as at 3 June 2024 based on & condition assessment conducted by Sssst Leb Pty Lbd. & unit rate and
affiectiva life review conducted by a team of in-hause profassianal staff.
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Culverts and Floodways were vakied as al 30 June 2023 based on a corditlon assessment conducled by Shepherd Sendces and
Councll's engineening staff. A unit rate and effective life review conducted by a leam of inrhause professional stafl

Recreational, lelsure and community facilltles (playground equipment) were valuad as 2% 30 June 2024 based on ndexation
caleulation, A unit rate and effectve life review conducted by A team of in-house prafessional staff.

Waste Management assets were valued as &t 30 June 2020 based on & condon aszesament. A und rate ard effective [fe review
conducted by a team of in-house prafessional staff, under the direction of Mr Scott Drapar, Manager Sustainability.

Aerodrome through the 2023024 raview of asssl classes that ara subject to revaluation, Council officars idenifiad thad the Asradrome
assat chass has baen praviously caried at Tair valua, however this accounting pelicy is nol deemed appropriata due fo the cost vs
beralil of fair valuing this immalerial class of assals, which is predominataly located underground. Raler bo Nota 10 for the accounting
policy changs petaining o the valuation methodology applied o Asrodrames assels

Description of significant unobsenvable inputs inte fevel I valualions.

Specialised land and land under roads is velued using a market based direct comparnison technioue. Significant unabsenvable
inputs include the exient end impact of restriction of use and the markst cost of lend per square metre. The extant and impact of
reswiclions cn uss varies and resulls in a reduction to surraunding land values betwaen 5% and 85%. The market velua of land
vares significantly depending on tha Iecation of the land and the cumrent market condilions

Infrastructure assets are valued based an the currant replacement cost.  Significant unabsersable inputs include the cument
replacement cost and remaining wsafu lives of infrastructure. The remaining wsaful lives of indrastructurs assets are determined an
the basis of the cument condition of tha asset and vary from 2 years to 150 years. Replacement castis sansilive to changes in
marke! condilions, with any increase or decrease in cosl llawing thrawgh o the valuation. Usalul lives af infrasliruchure are seansilive
ta changes in use, expectations of requirernents tat could eilber shomen ar extend the uselul lives of infrasiuciure a55ets

24 03
Specialized land 000 o0
Lard under roads 25035 22 649
Tatal specialised land 25,825 27,699
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6.2 Investmaents in associates and joint arrangements

() Inwestments in assoclates
Gaulbum Valley Regienal Library Comaralien

Goulburn Valley Regicnal Library Corporation

Bactipround

Tha Goulbum Valley Regional Libeary Corporalion is an antity which has been establishad to sarve threa northern Viclorian councils: Moim
Shira Council, Grealar Shapparion City Councl and Slrathbogie Shire Council. Each Council has two commilles rapresantalives on the
Baoard af Direclors plus & communily representative

Each member council cantribules financially 1o the operation of the Corporatian based on the ratio of their population base. Contrbulion
payments are considarad a Yee for senice’ on & commercial basis and ara relafive to the servicas the Corparation providas, Tha amound of
financial cantributions doss not bring with it amy addifianal woting rghts ar influence an the Fbrary activiies and therafore greater powear or
canirol.

2024 023
§000 §000
Fair walue of Council's investment in Goulbum Valley Regional Library Corparatian 288 906
Council’s share of accumulated surplus![deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surphus(deficit) &t slert of year &7 34
Rewised surplus{deficil) for price year (23] 16
Renorted $u|ﬂu${|‘i&|’|¢|l] fine ar 5 17
Council’s share of accumulated surplus{deficit) at end of year 43 &7
Councils share of reserves
Gouncil's share of reserdes at slart of year 3% 839
Councils share of reserves at and of year 8238 839
Mavement in carrying value of specific investment
Garrying value of irvestment a1 stat of vear 908 B73
Renised surplus(dafici) for prior yaar (23] 16
Shere of surplus(deficit) far year 5§ 17
Carrying value of investment at end of year S8E 906
Council’ share of expenditure commitments
COoerating commitmants 40 dll
Caoumell share of expenditure commitments. 40

b} Jaint Arrangemant
Cresiside Estate Nathalia - Joird Venture

Creakside Estate Nathalia - Joint Venture

Bachground

This was & joint venture between Maira Shire Coundl and Morthern Victoria Finances Limited to davelop land in Mathaliz info a 22 ot
residantial estate. Maira Shire Council had a 50% shara of tha jeint venlure

A lend has been sold. The joint venture wound up cparations in Gctober 2023 and profits disbursed.
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024 i
§'000 000
Fair walue of Council’s investment in Creekside Estate Nathalia - Joint Venture - 430
Council’s share of accumulated surplus![deficit]
Crouncils share al accumulated surplus(deficil) al slar of year . a3
Reperied surplus|defich) 103 193)
Council's share of accumulated surplus{deficit) at end of year 103 -
Mavement in carrying value of specific investment
Garmying vakhue of irvestment &t stat of year 440 583
Share af surplus(defcil) 103 [93)
Settiement of dizsohved jont venburs [583) -
Carrying value of investment at end of year - 430

The accaurts for Creskside Extate Mathalia - Joint Venbure are submitted as unawdited,

Assaciates are all apities over which Ceuncil has significant influence but nat cantrol ar joint controd. Investments in assaciales are
accounted far using the equity methed of accounting, after infialy being racegnised at cost

nvestments in joint arangaments ara classified es githear joint operatians ar joint wentures depending on the contractual rights and
abligafions each investar has, rathar than the kegal struclure of the joint arangement

For joinl operations, Councl recognises #s direcl right Lo, and its shane of jinlly hald assals, iabillies, revenues and expensas of joint
aperations

nberesls in ol venhares are accounbed far using the l'equl|:|l methed, Under thes methed, the inlerests are imbaly {2ty e I the
cangolidated balance shest at cost and adjussed thersafter to recognise Councils share of the post-acquisiion profits or losses and
mosemants in cther comprehensive income in profil or loss and other comprehensive income respectively.

(c] Community Asset Commitioes
Al antities contraled by Councl that hava matanal revanugs, axpenses, assels or liabdilies, such as Moira communiy assel commitiees,
Fav bean induded in This inancial reporl. Any ransactions between these enlilies and Cowncl have been eliminated in ful
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MNate 7 PEGFLE AND RELATIONSHIPS

7.1 Council and key management remuneration
|a) Related Parties

Farenl gnhly

Muira Shira Council i the parenl anlily.

Associgtes and folnl venlures
nieresls in asseciates and ponl venhures are detaded in Male 6.2

b} Key Management Parsonnel
ey menagement perscrinel (KMP) are those people with the authosity and responsibilty for planning, directing and contraling the activitias
of Meira Shire Counci. The Administrators, Chief Executive Officer and Directars are deemed KMP.

Administrators
Administratar John Tanner AM (Chair) 09 July 2023 1o 9 June 2024
Administratar Dr Greamsa Emonsan PSM (Administrator) - 01 July 2023 to % June 2024
(Chalr) = 10 June 2024 1o 30 June 2024

Administrator Suzanna Sheed AM - 01 July 2023 to 30 June 2024

Executive Officers
Clare Keanan - Chiel Execulive Ollicer < 01 July 2023 1o 30 August 20237
Joshug Lewis - Acting Chief Executive Officer - 01 July 2023 to 22 October 2023
- Director Infrastructure Servicas - 23 Octaber 2083 to 05 April 2024

Michael Tudbal - Acting Chief Executive Officer - 23 October 2023 1 21 Janusary 2024
Malthaw Morgan - Chiel Execulive Officar - 22 January 2024 1o 30 Juna 2024
Matthew Jarvis - Chief Financial Officer - 01 July 2023 to 13 October 2023

- Acting Direclor Sustainable Communities - 14 Gotober 2023 to 14 Janwary 2024

= Chief Financal Officer - 15 January 2024 ta 13 Febinary 2024

= Direcdor Corporate Parlormance - 14 Fabruary 2024 to 31 May 2024
Scodt Wiliams - Directar Community - 15 Januery 2024 to 30 June 2024
Bryan Sword - Director Sustainable Development - 22 January 2024 to 30 June 2024
Amarda Chadwick - Actirg Direclor Corporate, Govemance and Performance - 01 July 2023 1o 31 December 2023

- Expcutiva Manager Corporabe Govemansce - 01 January 2024 to 30 June2024

Janat Martin - Acting Director Sustainabla Communities - 01 July 2023 fo 13 Oetober 2023
Damien Burien - Acting Direcior Infrastructure Services - 10 July 2023 to 21 Nevember 2023
Beau Mittner - Acting Chief Financal Officer - 13 Saptember 2023 1o 22 December 2023
Andrea Noanan - Acling Exacuive Manager Paopla and Safely - 19 February 2024 o 30 June 2024
Justin Hanrehan - Acting Directar Infrastructure - 08 April 2024 to 30 June 2024
Eva Salib - Acting Directar Corparate Perfarmanee - 03 June 2024 ta 30 June 2024

* Clare Keanan was on extended paid leave whist in the pasition of Chisf Exacutive Offices

2024 b 1]
Mo, Na.

Tatal Number of Councillors - "
Tatal Number of Administrators 3 1
Tatal of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Persannel 14 10
Tatal Number of Key Management Personnel 17 24
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le] Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Flemuneration comprises employes benefiis including all forms of consideration paid, payable o prowvided by Council, or an behall of the
Gouncil, in axchanga for sarvices randarad. Ramunaration of Key Menagamant Personned and Othar senior staff is disclosed in the following

caleqonas.

Short-term employee benafits indude amounls such as wages, salafes, annual leave or sick leave al are usually paid or payable ana
regular basis, a5 wel a5 ron-manetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services

Other long-term employes bensfits includs long sardce leave, other long sanice benefits or deferrad compensaticn.
Pest-employment beneflits inclide penslors, and ather retirement benefits pald or payable an a dascrete basls when employment has

caased,

Termination benefits nclide teminalion ol employment payments, such a5 severance packages

Tolal remunaralion of key managamant personned was as lollows:

Short-term employse bengfils
Crher long-term employee benafils
Pasl-amploymenl banalils
Terminabion banalils

Tatal

2024 2023
§'000 §000
2,158 1,566
5 2
20 158
A1 .
3,044 1,744
2024 2023
Mo, No.

The rumiers of key management parsannal whoss total remungration (excluding termingtion benefits) from Council fall within the following

bards:

50- 59,999

510,000 - £13,999
520,000 - 28,989
530,000 - 38,900
3400000 - $45,959
$50,000 - §59,999
570,000 - 78,989
580,000 - 40,909
$90,000 - $99,999
5140,000 - 5143538
5150,000 - 5159595
570,000 - 5179 598
$190,000 - 5159 599
520,000 - 5209 535
5210,000 - 5219,99%
220,000 - 5229 593
F240,000 - 52439 595
5260,000 - 5263 535
5320,000 - 5329995
Tatal

{dj Remuneration of other senior staff

3
1 2
s i
1 1
1 -
. 2
3 1
2 -
1 2
- 1
1 -
- 1
1
1 -
2 1
1 1
- 1
1 1
1 =
17 24

(Crher senior staff are officers of Coundl, ather than Key Managamant Persoringl, whose tofal remuneration excesds 5170,000 and who

report direcdy o @ mamber of tha KMP.

Comparalives may not malch the previous year's annual report disclosures Tor senior officars. The other senior skaff remunaration threshold

under 7.1(d) has been increased Lo $170k for 2023-24
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2024 023
Tolal rermurieralion of olher SLallwas a5 fllows: §'000 000
Short-term employae benafils 462 a7
Crher Lorg-term employes banefits M4 20
Pasl-amployment banalils 43 -
Tatal 534 357
2024 i ]
Tha rumber of cther senior stall ara shawn bakow in Bheir ralevanl incame bands: o, Na.
$170,000 - $179.59% 2 i
5180,000 - $153,539 1 1
Tatal 1 2
2024 Fi ]
7.2 Related party disclosurs §'000 000
{8) Transactions with related partiss
Dty theee pieriond Gouncil erdered mlo the folowing transactions with relsted parties
(i} Fans and changas charged o anfities conlrollad by key managemenl parsannal - 43
(i} Employee expanses for closs family members of key managemend parsannal 44 ks
(i) Purchiese of materials and sandces from associates of key management persannel 257 a2
{ivh Purchase of materals and services from entities conbrelled by key management persernel - 14

{i} The fees and charges charged bo essociates and enlilies controlled by key management persornel were in sccordance with the schedule
of faes and chargas adopted by Coundil.

(1) 0 clesze Pamily memibers of key manasgement persannel were employed through an anm's length process, They ae pad n sccardance
with the Award for the |ob they parderm. Councll employs 250 s128 of which anly one Is a cloge family member of key managemant

(i) Council purchased the folowing matedsl and services from assaciates of key managemeant perscanel All purchases were 8t arm's length
andwers in the normal course of Councl operations:

[1) Construction sanices - $85,538
[2) Legal semvices - 3170,7T16
A gt 30 Jure 2024 there was 5129867 awed by Council to these entifies

(v} Coundl did not purchasa any maledal and sanvicas from enlilies thal are confrolled by mambars of kay managamant persoranel. As af 30
Jume 2024 thene were po amounts awed by Councl,

(b} Qutstanding balances with related parles

The faliowing balancas are sutslanding at the end of the reparting pericd in relation ko transactions with related parties:

{iy Faes and changas charged to entities contrallzd by key management parsannal - |
(i Emplayee expenses for coss family members of key management persannel 1 1

Mo axpanse has bean recognsed in the currand year ar priar year for bad or doustful dedls in respect of amounts owaed by related parties

|c) Loans ta ! from related partizs
Gouncll does not make loans o or recehve loans from related parties. No guaraniees have been provided

{d} Commitments to ! from related parties

The agoregatz amount af commitmands in existence at balance date that have been made, guarantesd or secured by the Councl toa
related party are as follows:

(it Moira Shira is commitled bo paying an annual contribuSan to Goulbum Yalley Regicnal Library Corparation Tor the pravision of library
sarices al four localions and a mabile library seevice, 2023024: $836,287 (2022(23; 5819,585)
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8.1 Confingent assets and liabilities
Contingert essals and confingent liabililies ara nat recognised in the Balance Sheal, but are disclosad and if quentifiable, sre measured &
nominal value. Cantingent assals and Fabiifes are prasented inclusive of GST raceivabla or payabla, respaclively.

|a] Contingant assats
Contingert essais are possible esssls that ariss from past events, whose existencs wil be confirmed only by the cocurence or non-
accurrance of ana or more uncertain fubure evenls not whaolly within the control af the Council.

Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements (DRFA) claims

Council has submitied 15 claims undar Disaster Recovery Funding Arangements (DRFA] for tha Octaber 2022 Flood Evant (4GRM 1037) for
costs incumed wp bo 30 June 2024, these claims iotaling 511,048 have yal to ba assessed and paid. Council has also submitied a further
10 eslimales under Category B Reconsiruclion Warks Tor repairs to ils roads netwark fram the Oclober 2022 Flood Evenl (AGRN 1037}

Non-Manetary assel contrlbutions

Contriged non-cumen! asselts fram devedapment acinilies are expecied 1o be recehved in 202425 n respect of property subdedsions under
develapment, As the volume and type of 355615 ta be contriouted are unknown, It is net practicable for Councl to dgclosure an esimate of
the assels expected ta be received,

(b} Contingant liabilities
Contingent liabilites are:
- possible abligations that arise from pest events, whose exislence will be conSrmead anly by the cocumence ar non-accurrence of ong o more
uncertain future avents not whally within the cantrol of the Coundl, ar
- prasani chiigalions lhal arse lrom pasl evanls bul are nod recognised because:
& it is nal probable that an cutilow of resources embodying economic benefits will be raguined to setile the obligation; ar
b the @mcunt of the cbigation carnet be measwred with sufficient reliability,

Bank guavanieos
Councll hag twio open-ended bank quarantess totalling 3697 500 for landfill and guarry rehabiitation performance obligations

Superamnuaiian

Council has chiigations under a dafined banefil superannuation scheme thal may resull in the ne=d to make addifisnal centributions o tha
scheme, matlers relating fo this polential cbbgation are gufined below. As a rasult of the valatility in financial markels the likelihood of
Fakiry such contrioufions in fubure perods exsts

Liability Mufual Insirance

Council was a parficipant of the MAY Liabilty Mubual Insurance [LMI} Scheme, concluding on 30 June 2022, The LMI scheme provides
pubiic liabdity and professional indemnity nsurancs cover. The LML scheme slates that each participant will remain lable to make further
cantributions 1o the scheme in respect of any ingusance year in which 1| was a pariopant o the extent of Rs pamicipant's share of any shartfal
n the provision et aside in respect of that insurance year, and such lizblity will contnue wheter or not the pamcipant remans a paricipant
n future insurance years
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8.2 Change in accounting standards

Certain new Austrakan Accounting Standands and Interpretations hawe been pubkshed that ane not mandatary for the 30 June 2024 reporting
periad. Cauncl asgesaes tha |rr'pa|:taf'.hese mew standands,

In December 2032 the Ausiralian Accounting Standards Board (AASE) ssued AASE 2022-10 Amendments to Australian Accourding
Standards - Fair Value Measurement of Mon-Financial Asssts of Mot-for-Proft Publc Sector Entities to modify A458 13 Far Value
Measurement. AA5B 2022-10 amends ALSHE 13 Fair Value Measurement for fair valus maasuraments of nen-financial assets of not-for-profit
public saclor entities not held primarily for their sbiily to geanarale ned cash inflows. The AASE 13 modifications:

- ara applicable: only to nol-lor-profil public saclor anlilies;

- ane lirmited 1o Tar value measurements of nondinancal assels nol beld primarly far heir ability 1o generate nel cash inflows,

- ane to be appled prospectively for anmual perads begrning on or after 1 January 2024

- wiould nat necessanly change practice for some not-for-profit public sector enfifies; and

- d not indicate that entibes changing practios in how they measure relevant assels made an errar in applying the existing requirements of
AASE 13

Council will assess any impact of the madificefions to A45E 13 ahead of the 2024-25 raporting panod.

In December F022 the Ausiralan Accounting Standards Board (AASE) sued AASE 2026 Amendments (o Ausiralian Accounting
Standards - Mon-current Liabilities with Covenants. ARSE 2052-6 amends AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statemeants o Improve the
riformation an entity prosides inits financial statements abeut lorg-temm lisbiilies with covenants where the enlity's right to defer setliement
aof thoss liabilitias for at least twstve months after the reporting paricd is subject to the antity complying with conditions specfied in the loan
amengement. The amendments in AASE 2022-6 ere affsclive for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2024, Council wil assess
any impac! of lhe modifications 1o AA58 101 shead of the 2024-25 reporling pericd.

8.3 Financial instruments

|a] Objectives and policies

The Crouncils princpal inancial instruments compnise cash assels, larm deposils, recaivables (exduding slatulory recaivables), payables

{exciuding slatubory payables) and TOV borrowings,  Delails of matedal accounling policy information and melhods adapted, including the

criteia for recegnition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liabdity and ecuity Instrument |5 disdosad inthe rates of the financlal statements,

Rlisk management i caried oul by senior menagemant under palides appraved by the Coundl. These policies indude identification and
analysis of the risk exposune 1o Coundl and appropriale procedures, confrols and risk minimisation.

(b} Market risk

Merked risk i= the risk thet the fair walue ar futurs cash flows of coundil financial instraments will fluctuats bacauss of changss in market
prices. Tha Councils expesura to markal risk is primarily through inbaras! rata risk with onby insignificant expesura bo other price risks and no
axpasura ta faraign cumency risk

Intarast rats sk

Interest rate risk refers ta the risk that the value of a financizl instrument ar cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuste dus o
changes in market interest rales. Councl's intzrest rete liability risk arizas primarily from long tarm loans and bamowings at fived rates which
axposes council bo fair value interast rete risk. Cash flow interest rete risk is the risk thal the future cash flows of & financial instrument wil
flucheate because of changes in market interest rates. Counci mitigates this risk by investing in fixed larm daposit faclilies that are ratad
within tha cradi rating thresholds as noted in Council’s Invessimant Policy. Council has mirimal exposure to cash flow intarast rate risk
through its cash and deposits [hal ane al Noating rades

Invesimant af surplus funds is made with approved Ainancial institulions under the Locs! Gavernment Act 2020, Councll manages nbenest
rata risk by adopling an investmant policy that ansuras:

- divarsification of imvestment product;

- noniteeing of retum on investment; and

- benchmarking of retums and comparison with budoet.
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Thisre has been no sigrificant change in the Councils axpesure, or s objeclives, policies and processes lor managing inberesl rake risk o lhe
methods esed o measure Bis nsk from the presious rpoming penad

Interest rate movernents have been sionilicant during the year o have an impact on the Counci's year and rasull, inlerest income on
rvastments has increased §1.45M on the previous financial year,

(€] Credit risk

Credst risk Is the risk that a contracing entity will not complete its abligations under a financial mstrument and cause Coundl ta make a
financial kags, Councll have expesure to cradit dsk on some financlal assets incheded in the balance sheet. Parloulary sagnificant areas of
credit risk exist in relation o outstanding Tees and fines as well as recaivables fram spoeting clubs and associations, To help manage this riskc
- Council have a palicy for establishing credit limits for the enbities Councl deal with;

- Councll may reguine collaberal where appraprate; and

= Council oty inves! surplus funds with fnancial nsliluions which hawve a recognised credil raling spacilied in Councils investmant policy.

Receivables corsist of 8 lanpe number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and govemment sectars. Credil risk associated
with the Council's financiel assets i minimal becausa the mein debtor is s2cured by a change over the rateabls proparty.

There ara na matesial fnancia assets which ane individually desermined o be impaired.

Counctl may also be subpect fo creds nsk for transacticns which ane nal included in the balance sheet, such &5 when Cauncl pravide a
quarantes far anather party. Detals of our contingent lizblities are dscosed in Mate 8.1(b)

The maximum expasure 1o oredil risk at the reporting date o recognised financial assets is the camying amauri, net of any abowance for
mparment of thase assets, as discdosed in the balanca sheet and nates 1o the financial statements. Council dogs nat held any collatersl.

(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the sk that, &s a resull of Councl's cperational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds to setile a
transactian when required ar will be forcad o 52l a financial asset at below value or may be unable to sattle ar racover a financial asset

Ta help reduce thesa risks Counal:

- largets lo maintan & minmum and average level of cash and cash equivalents;

- has readily accassinle standby facities and cther funding arangements in place;

- has a liquidity portfolio structure thal requires surplus funds 1o be rvested within variows bards of liguid instrumaents;

- manftors budget to achzal perfarmance an a regular basis; and
- et limiks on borrowings relating to the percentage of loang to rate revenys and percentage of loan principa

rapayments ko raba ravenue.

The Council's maximum exposwre to iguidity risk is tha carmying amounts of financial liabilities 2= disclosed on the face of the balance sheet
and is desmad insignificant based on prior pariods” data and curent assessment of risk

Thara has baen na significant change in Councils exposune, of its objectivas, palidies and procasses for managing liquidity risk or e
methods usad to measura this risk from the previous reporting parod

Wil the gaceplion of borrowings, all irancial liabililies are sapecled b be sellled within rormal termes of irade. Details of the malurily profile
tor bamrowings are discased al Note 5.4

Unless ofherwss stated, the camying amaunls of fimancial irsiruments reflect thedr fair vaue
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(&) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking Irte account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and managemenl's knowledge and experiencs of the
financial markets, Council balaves the followng movemsants are ‘reagonably possible’ aver the nest 12 months:

- 4 paralled shift of «0.9% and -1.1% in market interest rates (AUD) fram vear-end rates of 4.35%

Thase movamants will nal hawve a materal mpacl on e valuation of Council's fnancal assels and liabililies. Intaras! incoma would ba
mpacted ag would borowing costs, a5 hunds are devwn down, I s nol expected This wil have 3 matenalimpact on the resulls of Counci's

aperatiang

8.4 Fair valus measuremant
Fair valire higrarchy

Council's financial assets end lisbdilies are nat walied in accordance wilh the fair value hizranchy | Council's financial assets and lisbdities are

measured at amortised cast

Council meesuras certain &s=2ls and labiilies at fair valws where required or pamitted by Australian Accourding Slendards. AASE 13 Fair
walus measuremenl, aims to imprave consistancy and redusca complexity by providing a dafinition of fair value and a singla sourca of fair
walue measuremenl and disclasure requiramants for usa across Australan Accounting Slandands.

Al assets and liabilitias for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements are categorised wighin a fair value hisrarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest leved inpuf that is significant o the Tair value measuremant as a whole:

Lewed 1 — Quoted {umadpusted) marked prices in aclive markels for dentical assels or liabililies

Lewed 2 = Valuation technigues lor which Lha lowest lavel input thal is significant o the Tair valua measuramant i direclly o indirecily

abserdable, and

Lewel 3 — Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant fo the Tair valua measurement i unobseniable,

Far the purpase af tair value disclsures, Councl has delermined classes of assels and liablilies an the basis of te natura, characlenslics
and nsks of the assel or liabilty and Te kevel of the fair valie higrarchy as explained above.

In addton, Councll delermnes whelher ransfers have occumed between levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based an the
Iovavest lewel input that s significant to the fair value measurement a3 a whals) at the end of each reporting pesiod

Revafsatan

Subsequent 1o the inilial recognilion of assels, non-cument physieal assels, other than plant and equipment, ane measwred 3 their fair value,
being the price that would be recelved to sell an assat (or pald to transfer a kabiity) In an ordesdy ransaction batween market participants at
the measwrement date, For plant and equipment carrying amaount is considered to approximate fair velus given shor usaful lives. At balance
data, the Council reviewed the camying value of the individual classes of assetz measured & fair value to ensure that each asset materially
approvmatad it fair velus, Whera the camying value materially diffared from the fair value &t balance date. the class of assat was revalued.

Fair value valuafions ara determined in accordanca with a valuation hierarchy. Changas Lo tha valuation hierarchy will only occur if an
axternal changa in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset resull in changes to the pamissible or praclical highest and bast use of the
assel. In addition, Counci underlakes a formal revaluation af land, buldings, and inlrasineaciure assals an a regular basis ranging Trom thnes
to v years. The valuation i performed either by expenenced council afficers or independent experts. The fllowing tabie sets oul the

frequency of resaluations by assel class
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Revalualian

Asgel class fraquancy
Land 4 yuars
Land undsr roads 4 years
Buildings o years
Bridges o s
Cubverts and Floodways 4 yoars
Drainaga 4'|-‘Ev?l'5
Foofpaths and cydeways d years
Kerh and Channel o years
Parks, open spack and sireslscapes 4 yaars
Recrafonal, lsisure and community facillias A years
Foais dyears
Othier Infrastnacture assets 4 s

‘Whara the assals ara raveluad. tha ravalualicn incremeants are credited diraclly b the assat revaluafion resares exceapl to the axtent thai an
noreases revarsas a prior year decrament for that class of assel that had baen recognised as an expense in which case the increase is
recagnisad as ravenue up |o the amounl of the axpense. Revalualion dacreases are recogrised as an expansa excepl whare pricr increasas
arg inclided in the assel revaluation resends lor thal class of asselin which case the decrease 15 taken Io the resenve to Te extenl of e
TETNENINY INCTEases Within the same class of assels, revaluatin increases and decreases within the year are offsel

Impairment af assels

Al each reporling dale, tha Council revienws Lha carmying walue af il assets 1o detarmine whether tere is any indicalion thal thesa assals
M been impaingd, 1T such an indication exisls, the recoveraihe amount of the assel, being the higher of the assel's Tar value less costs of
disposal and value in use, & companed to the assets camying value, Any excess of the &ssels camying value over its recoverable amount &
expensed to the comprehensie income stabement, unless the asset is cared at the revalued amount In which case, the Impalrmeant logs |s
recogrised direcily aoainst the revaluation sunplus in respect of the same diass of asset 1o the extend that the impaiment loss does not
exceed the amount in the revalustion surplus far that same class of essel.

Imparmment Incicador - Flaod impacled Roads

In Qctabar 2022, a fiood avenl oocurred across Vicloria, a Disaster Recovery evant (AGEN 1037) was declared. This flood avenl impactad
sami of Couneil's road nelwork, which required a condiion assessmaent 1o be undertaken in order o assess te damage and restoralion
works required. The condition assessment had been performed by Shepherd Servioes and the updated condbion data for Councils rad
nedwork was uplaaded in Councl's asset management sysiem in order to adust asset camying values to reflect cumrent condition, Any
mparment in camying value s a result of declining asset condition has been appled against the revaluation reserve to affset previous
revaluadion increments.

8.5 Events occurring after balance date
Mo mattars have ccoumed aftar balance date that reguine disclosure in tha financial reporl.

8.6 Priar perlad adjustment
Through processing developer contributions during the 202324 financlal year, Coungl identified contriouted assets tosaling 510179 milian
which had practical completion sign-off date during the 202323 financial year,

In the yeer ended 30 June 2024, these contributed assets have been brought 1o account by retrospectively resiaing the dosing balances

recarded as at 30 Juns 2023

W3
Contributed property, infrastructure, plamt and equipment 000
Drainage 3105
Fraipsaths 720
Kerh & Channel 1,954
Land - speciaised 3
Reads AT
2022123 Contributed Assets Adjusiment T T
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Recancbalion of changes lo e 202227 Comprehensive fncome Flatamant:

Comprehensive income Statement
Conlrbulions - non monalany
Total income | revenue after adjusted balances

Surplus for the year after adjusted balances

Recancifalion of chenges o the 2022723 Belsnce Sheel:
Balance Shest

Prm&rl:ll_ irfrastructune, piant and equipment

Tefal nan-currant assels

Total Assets after adjusted balances

Recanclabon of changes fo the 2022023 Stalement of Changes i Equily
Statement of Changes in Equity

Accumulated Surplus

Resenes

Tatal Equity

Recancifiation of chenges to the 202223 Agures in Nofe 3.5(h} Cantnbulions - Non Monatay

Contributions of non manetary assels
Land

Land - spediaised

Roads

K and charmel

Fralpaths and cycle ways

Drainaga

Total non monedary contributions

02223 W3 iyl
Unadjusted Adjustment Adjusted
Balance incriase Balance
(decrease)

§'000 £000 §000
3,052 10,178 14,13
80,230 0178 0,409
15,442 0178 25641
774,905 10,179 TB5, 084
785,594 10,179 785,773
BE0,142 10,178 &70,321
258,536 10,179 268,715
568,098 - 568,098
826,634 10,178 B36.813
3 - 3

- ] 23

914 AT 3,79
776 1954 2,73
456 i} 3,178
1,303 3106 4 A08
3362 10173 1413

RecancWahon of changes o the 205223 Bgures i Mae & 7 Propery, nfrasiricioe, planl and equipment

E.1 Proparty, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Property

Infrastructure

Tatal

E.1{a] Proparty
Land - speciaised
Tatal Property

6.1 {c) Infrastructure
Dirainage

Frilpaths

Kard & Charnal
Roads

Tatal infrastructure®

239,561 ] 39,504
522 531 10,156 532 609
Tr4 905 10,178 TES 084
22,635 23 22,702
239,561 23 348,584
58,028 3105 B1,133
32,184 bl 3 404
g2 810 1984 B4, T4
296,981 2AT7 259,858
522,533 10,156 532,609

* Balare is befors the reclassification of Pumps from infrestructura 4o Plant end Equioment in 2023724 accounts.
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Note 9 OTHER MATTERS

9.1 Regarves Balance at Increase Balance at
(4] Assed revaluation reserves baginning of [decreaasa)’ and of
reparting reparting
perlad perlad
§'000 $000 §000
2024
Property
Lard T, T4 - 714
Land under roads 16,750 1081 19811
Lard Improvamants 13,73 - 15T
Buildings 74,195 4837 79,032
176,390 7,858 184,288
Infrastructure
Roads 243,435 12633 256,068
Bricges 24,556 450 25,506
Karlr and channel #, 780 [18.582) 10,207
Footpaths and cycle ways 33,3 33 a4
Oralrage 3,052 756 37808
Cuverts and loodways 15,818 (19) 15,800
Recreaticnal, leisure and community facilities 1,147 52 1,798
Cithar infrastruchars 2,215 - 2,415
382,556 4,09 IBG, 47
Tatal asset revaluation reserves 558,946 11,989 570,925
2023
Proparty
Land 43,371 28343 71,714
Lard under raads 4 BET 12083 16,750
Lard Improsemsents 13,731 - 1573
Bulldings 58 247 15808 14,195
120,066 56.324 176,390
Infrastructire
Roscs 165,857 TramE 2435435
Bricges 20,623 3933 24 555
Kerh and channe 21,976 T813 29,780
Footpaths and cycle ways 3,726 3217 33,843
Drainage 3,344 1708 a2
Cuiverts and foadways 4,200 6619 15,819
Regrealicnal, leisure and commurdy Tacilities 1,748 2} 1747
Othar infrastructura 1,077 1138 2H5
274,552 108,004 382,556
Tafal assef revaluation resarves J04E18 164,228 558,046

* Increased decrease] indudes disposal of weitten-off infrastnueciure assets where a sufficient balance is maintained in the Azset Ravaluation
Reserve.

The asset revaluation resenve is wsed to recond the increased |net) value of Councifs assets aver time,
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|b) Other reserves Balance al  Transfer fram Transher to Ealance al
beginning of  accumuelated  sccumulated end of
reparting surplus surplus regarting
period pariad
5000 §'000 £000 $'000

024
Recraatonal open Space resene 1.0 a57 2,047
Car parking reserve 140 140
Met pain native vagelation resane 143 143
Botts Road - MY Highway infersection resene ] 276
Yarrawanga Wellands drainage resere 100 100
Yarrawanga Five Ways inlersachion resene 4G - 45
Capilal works camied forward resere 7.237 3,064 10,341
Tatal Other reserves 9,152 3,921 13,073

023
Recreaticnal cpen spaca resenve 1033 1T 1,210
Carparking reserve 140 - - 140
Nel gain nalive \'-&Ee;lﬂl;uﬂ PR 143 - - 143
Bolts Road - MY Highway inlersection resene 276 - - 276
‘farrawanga Welands drainage resane L] . . 100
‘Yarrawanga Five Ways inlersection resene 46 - - 48
Capital works camied Torward reganie 34,930 - (27 GYG| 7257
Taftal Dther resorves 36,668 177 (27,693) 9,152

Recreationsl open space reserve hes been estebished in accordance with the Sub-diision Act 1988 and s used to develop strategically
Incated parks and resenies for the benefit of the residents in the municipality.

Car parking reserva has baen eslablished undar the Planning and Environmant Acl 1887 and & used lo provide adequala car parking
paces within thi ﬂlu"li:;{lﬂlily

Net gain native vegetation reserve has been esfablished under the Flanning and Enviranment Act 1287 and = uged ta full Councils
abligation in regard to planting of native vegetation

Botts Road - MV Highway intersection reserve has bean astablshad {0 alocabe funds provided by devalopars to improving the
rilgrsection of Balls Read and the Murray Valley Highway in Yarrawanga

Yarrawonga Wetlands drainage reserve has been establishad o alocate funds provided by developers ta impraving the drainage in the
¥arrawanga wedands

Yarrawonga Five Ways intersection reserve has bean aslablshed o allocaba funds provided by devalopars to improving tha five ways
rilersection of Waeds, Sauth, Cahils and Cikd Wilky Roads and Gilmane Streal Yamawanga,

Capital works carried forward reserve rapresents Council funds alkcated for capital works not completed 2= at the end of the financial
yaar, this excludes incams from capitel grants, centributions or leans atirbutable fo the capital warks project.
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9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows frem operating activities to surplus![deficit) Foon 000
Surplus ! (dedcit) far the year® 4,847} HEEN
Nan-cash adjusimants:

Depraciation’ amortisatian 16467 14,243
Prafit { Loss) on dispasal of property, infrastructune, plant and equipment (56} (212
Conlrinefans - Mor-menelany assets”™ 15.445) 114,131
Share of nel profit | (lass) of mvesiments in associates (65} &l
Price year cepital works expensad 1437 )|
Fair walue adjustment of intangiole asset (211} (262)
Mel walue of presiously unrecognised assels (2110} 5]
Fair value adjestment of Employes Enbilemanls Provisions - TEH
Fair walue adjuestment of Landfil Provisions 2] [1.274)
Finance costs - Bormowings - 12
Firance costs - Leases 5 "
Bad debls writlen off 1] 16
Change In assats and Nabilities:

Inerease|idecradss In trade and other recanvables L= [T
{Increase)idacraasa in prapaymenls 189 194)
{Increase]idecreass in contrect esseis (875} .
\Increaselidecraasa in accnied inceme (311} [1,825)
{Increase|idecredss in irmentanes {73 150
{Incraase)idacraasa in inlangible assals - go4
Incressal(decrease) in trade and cther payeblas 1.207 354
Increaseldecrease) in other iabiities 118 TS
Increasedecrease) In contract and other liabiites (2.206) 2461
Incraasaldecrease) in pravisons 410 [1E19)
Met cash provided by operating activities 31325 25473

" Reder 8o Mila 5.6 for imfomabion on reslalesent of pror panod bakance
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9.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majonty of s employer supsrannuation contrioutions in respect of its employees to the Local Authoritias Superannuation
Fund {the Fund). This Fund has two cabegories of membership, accumulation and defined benaefil. each of which is funded diffarently.
Diligalicns lor confribulions 16 the Fund ane recogrised a5 an expense in the Comprehensive Income Slatement when they ane made or dug

Accumulation

The Fund's accumidiation categary, Wisian MySupen'Vision Super Saver, recenves bath empleyer and employes contrioutians an
pragressive basis. Emplayer contributions &re nomally based an a fixed parcantage of employes earnings (far the year ended 30 June 2024,
this was 11.0% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (5G] legislation [2023: 10.5%)).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefl accounting far ks defined banefit chigations under e Fund's Defined Benefit category, The i because
e Fund's Defined Benefit cabegory |8 & poaled muRk-employer sponsered plan,

There is na propeicnal split of the defined benefit abiities, assels or cosls betwesn the paicipating emplayers &s the defined banefit
abligetion is a fleating obligation betwsen the participating employars and the cnly time that the aggregate abligation is allcated to specific
amplayers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Moira Shirz in the Fund cenncd bs measured as & percentage
compared with other parlicipating employers. Tharafore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allecate benafit lisbiities, assels and costs batwean

amplayers far the purpases af AASE 119

Funding arrangemants

Council makes amployer contribufions to the Defined Benefit catagony of the Fund at rates detammined by the Trustes on the advice of the
Fund Actuary. A triennial aciuanial investigation for the Defined Benafit category as at 30 Juna 2023 was conducied and complated by 31
Decamber 2023, Tha vested benalil index [VBI) of the Dafined Banalil calegory as al 30 June 2023 was 104,1%. Council was nalilied of the
30 June 2023 VBI during August 2023, The financial assumplions used 1o calculabe the 30 June 2023 VBI wene

Nat imvestment rebums 57% pa
Salary informalion 3.6% pa
Price inflation (CPI} 2.8% pa

Tha VB i5 usad as the primary funding indicalor. Because the VBl was above 100%. the 30 June 2023 actuarial investigation datarmined tha
Defngd Benoht categony was in a salisfactory irancial position and thal no change was necessary to the Defined Beneflt category's funding

arangemenls from prior years

Emplaoyer cantributions
(8] Regqular confributions

O the basis of the resuts of the 2023 fiennid actuanal investigation cenducted by the Fund Acteary, Council makas employer contributicns
ta the Fund's Defined Benedit categony at ratas determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2024, this rata was 11.0% of
members' salanies {10.5% in 2022023). This rate is expectad fo increase in fne with any incraases in the 56 confribution rate end was

reviewed as part of the 30 Juna 2023 Irannial valuatian

n addition, Council reimburses e Fund 1o caver the excess al the benelits paid as a consequence of relrenchment abave the funded

resignation or retirement benefil

{by) Funding caks

f the Defined Benefit cateqony is in an unsatisfactary financial pasitian at an acteanal imvestigation ar the Defined Bensfit category's VB is
below its shorfal limit at any fime ether than the date of the actuanal investigation, the Defined Benefit catagory has a shartfall for the
purposas of SPS 160 and the Fund is required ta put a plan in place sa that the shortdall is fully fundad within three years of the sharifall
accuring. The Fund maonilors its WBI an a quartery basis and the Fund has sat its shoelfall imil &t 38% from 26 July 2024 (previcusly 37%)
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n the avend thal the Fund Actuary delemmines that here is & shorfall based an the abave requirement, the Fund's parlicpaling employers
{including Gouncil) are required ta make an employer contribution 1o cover the sharial

Wsing the agreed mathadology, the shorttall amount 15 apparianed belwesan fe parlicipaing emplovers Based on b pre-1 July 1993 and
poat-30 June 1993 service llablities of the Fund's Defined Banefs categary, together with the amalayer's payral at 30 June 1993 and at the
date the shartfall has been calculated.

D tea thoe pesahiares of 1he condractisal ehigations between the paniopating emplovers and the Fund, and that the Fured inclisdes lifetime
persioners and ther reversionary beneficianes, 1 s unikely that the Fund will be wound up,

{there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannat be returned ta the parlicioating emplayers,

n the avenl thal a parlicipaling employer is waund-up. lhe dalined banalil caligalions of thal amgloyer wil be iransfemed bo lhal employer's
SUGCRSSOr

The 2023 trienndal actuarial Investigation surplus amounts

An acluarial imvasligation is conducled annually for the Dalined Banefl catagary of which Councl is a conlnbuling employer. Ganesaly, a ful
aclsarnial irsestigation & conducted every three years and interim acluanal irvestigations are conducted Tor each nlervening year, A il
Ireestigation was conducted as a1 30 June 2023

The Fund's acluarnial invasligatians identiSad the following for the Dedined Benefil calegory of which Coundll is a contribuling employer.

FlLikES 082

(Triennial) (intarim)

§m $m

A VEI surplus 847 44.B
A total sarace labligy surplus 1236 105.8
A discouried accrued benelils sumpils 4149 1.8

The WEI surplus maans that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined bensfit abligafions exceed the vested benefits that
the definad benefit mambers would hava baen enfitiad 1o if they had al axited on 30 Jura 2023,

The tatal sardice iabilty surplus means that the curent valua of the assals in the Fund's Defined Banafit calegory plus axpacted fulure
conlributions excecds the valie of expected future benelils and expensies as al 30 June 2023

The descourited acerued benefil surplus méans thal the current ke of Bie assets in the Fund's Defined Beneft cateqory sxceeds the value
of banefits payakile In the fubare but acenied in respact of sendee to 30 June 2023

The 2024 interim actuarial investigation

A inerien actuanial investigatian is being conducted for the Fund's pasition as &1 30 June 2024 a5 the Fund provides lifefime pensians in the
Defined Benedt category. It s anticipated that this actuarial invessaation wil be complated by Qctober 2024

The WBI of the Defined Benefit cateqorny was 105.4% as &t 30 June 2024, The fnandal assumptions used 1o caleulate the 30 June 2024 VEBI

WErE:
Met invesiment refurns 5.6% pa
Salary infamrnalion 1% pa
Price infllation (CP1) 2% pa

Council was nofified of the 30 June 2024 VBI during August 2024,
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Becauss |e VBl was above 100%, the Delined Benchl cabegary was in a satisfaclory frandal posilion al 30 Jure 2024 and il & axpecled
that the actuarial investigaton will recommend that na change will be necessary 1o the Defined Benelil categanys furding arrangements fram
prior years

The 2020 triennial investigation
The |ast triznnial actuanial investigation conducted prior 1030 June 2023 was st 30 June 2020, This acluansl investigation was completed by
3 Decamber 2020, The financial azsumplicns for the purposes of that investigation was:

2020 023
Triennial Triennial
invastigation invastigation
et mvestment return 5.6% pa 5.7% pa
2.5% pa for two
¢ inll
Satary wilation yesars and 2.75% 3.50% pa
pid Iheealter
Price inflation 2.0% pa 28% pa

Superannuation contributions

Conlrbubicns by Caimel -:&lducll"lg any unrdurcled babibty panents) bo the above superannuatan plans for the firancial waar ended 3 June
2024 are detalled below:

Scheme Type of Schame Ratz :,m ::Jt
ieion super Accumuialion 11.0% . .
(202 10.5%) 1.241 1422
Al other funds Accumulation 11.0% )
2023 10.5%) 112 "o

1 addition bo the aibeve contrbulicns, Moira Shire has paid unfunded liability paymants {o Vision Super tataling $Nil during tha 2023024 year
(BOZZI25 5N

There were SNI contributions autstanding and na loans Issued from ar to the abave schemes as al 30 Jure 2024

The expectad confributions {o be paid i the Defined Banefil categary of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2025 is 3MIL
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Mote 10 Change in Accounting Policy

Through review of assed clagses thal ane subjec! Lo revalualion, Council olficess identified Bal the Asrodrome assel dass has been
prestously carmed al fair wakie. This accourting policy 15 nol desmed appropriate due b the cost vi. benelit of revaluing his class of assed,
which & predominalely localed undenground Therelore Cauncl has chamged ils accouning pelicy Do recognise fese 233815 on a cost kess
acoumulated depreciation method, rater than revaluation method,

Council officars hawve assess the impact of the changs in accounting policy, which is deemed o be immaterial. Therefors the change in
accounting policy has nal been retrospactively applied.

Thara have bean na furlher changes 1o accounling policies in ha 2023-24 year,
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Beau Mittner CA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: (Date)

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Moira Shire Council for
the year ended 30 June 2024 presents fairly the results of council's performance in
accordance with the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning
and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures
and results in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable
capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any
particulars in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2020 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Dr Graeme Emonson PSM
Chair Administrator
Dated: (Date)

Suzanna Sheed AM
Administrator
Dated: (Date)

Matthew Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: (Date)
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Victorian Auditor - General’s Office Audit Report

Insert Independent Auditors Report Page 1
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Section 1. Description of municipality

Moira Shire is located in the Hume region of Victoria and stretches from Bundalong in the
east to the Barmah National Park to the west. The Shire's northern boundary is defined by
the Murray River and the south-west, southern and south east regions share boundaries
with the municipalities of Campaspe, Greater Shepparton, Benalla, Wangaratta and Indigo.
Maoira is centrally located to the regional cities of Shepparton, Wangaratta and Albury-
Wodonga.

Moira Shire Covers an area of 4,045 square kilometres and has a current population of
30,522 residents (2021 Census) and includes four major towns; Cobram, Nathalia,
MNumurkah and Yarrawonga and 22 smaller communities.

The economic strengths of the Maoira Shire include intensive irrigated agricultural production,
associated food processing industries and tourism. The Shire is home to a variety of
agricultural industries including horticulture, cereal, cilseed, livestock and dairy production.
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Section 2. Service performance indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2024

Results
2021 2022 2023 2024
Comments
Target as
Actual Actual Actual per Actual
budget
Aguatic Facilities
Utilisation . o
Utilisation of aquatic facilities 1.34 1.68 1.50 242 1.93 An increase in lifeguard numbers, warmer weather and
minimal plant issues have contributed to a 29% increase in

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / visits to Council's aquatic facilities.
Municipal population]
Animal Management
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100% 0.00% | No prosecutions occurred in this reporting period.
[Number of successful animal management
prosecutions / Number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100
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Food Safety

Health and safety

Critical and major nen-compliance outcome 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | No material variation.

notifications

[Number of critical non-compliance outcome

notifications and major non-compliance

notifications about a food premises followed up

/ Number of critical non-compliance outcome

natifications and major nen-compliance

notifications about a food premises] x100

Governance

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with community consuitation and 55 45 41 47 37 In the development of the budget target, there was an

g‘;ﬁ;ge;:’":hti":;::;:;;:Zi’gc;fg';;‘gggn‘:“ expectation that community perception of Council's

efforts of Council) ) !:l::‘r?sgltallon and engagement would improve Ithrough new
initiatives such as the Moira Matters community
engagement platform. Council will continue to review its
consultation and engagement processes, as well as
feedback from the community, to improve the performance
of this metric in the future.

Libraries

Participation

Library membership N/A N/A N/A N/A 26.52% | New indicator introduced in the 2023/24 reporting period.

[percentage of the population that are Previously the metric considered ‘active library borrowers’,

Lilati CR ITH ¥

registered library members] x100 now the metric is based on ‘library members'.

Maternal and Child Health {(MCH)

Participation

Farticipation in the MCH service 83.18% 85.65% | 83.38% | 82.32% | 81.44% | Vulnerable families continue to be monitored to ensure

[Number of children who attend the MCH
service at least once (in the year) / Number of
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

they are engaged in Council's Maternal & Child Health
Service.
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Participation

Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal | 93.83% | 93.67% | 89.13% | 94.18% | 91.01% | Council's Maternal & Child health Service continue to
chitdran monitor and facilitate engagement of indigenous families.
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the The service a:ttend_ Cummeragun]a ona monthly basis to
MCH service at least once (in the year) / develop relationships with the community and have
Number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the provided support to immunisations sessions and other
MCH service] x100 community events such as Dharnya Day.

Roads

Condition

Sealed local roads below the intervention level 05.88% 96.06% 08.49% 97.00% 98.47% No material variation.

(percentage of sealed local roads that are

below the renewal intervention level set by

Council and not requiring renewal)

Statutory Planning

Service standard

Planning applications decided within the 58.99% | 45.09% | 62.87% | 66.00% | 69.68% | Improvements in timeliness follows a focus on recruitment
relevant required time for vacancies and improvements to process.

(percentage of planning application decisions

made within the refevant required time)

Waste Management

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste diverted from fandfill | 59.98% | 57.44% | 55.58% | 57.00% | 58.37% | Council undertook significant engagement as part of its

[Weight of recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins / Weight of
garbage, recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] x100

Kerbside Transition Campaign, which involved directly
talking to and answering resident's questions. This, plus
additional education campaigns and social media posts
around hard to dispose of waste materials, has led to a
higher diversion of waste from landfill.
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Section 3. Financial performance indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2024

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 . e
Material Variations and
) - Target As Comments

Dimension/indicator/ Actual Actual Actual per Actual Forecast | Forecast | Forecast | Forecast

measure budget

Efficiency

Expenditure level

Expenses per property $3,288.41 | $3,280.43 | $3497.89 | $3,820.00 | $4,054.62 | $4,030.43 | $4,024.02 | $4,098.92 | $4,151.57 | Result impacted by higher

assessment depreciation charge of non-
current assets in 2023/24

E:T;J;:: ::f;r;ssesi ; ;V;:;z:;r following large asset valuation
mavements over the past two
years.

Revenue level

Average rate per property | $1,731.54 | $1,761.07 | $1,792.79 | $1,851.00 | $1,855.96 | $1,935.65 $1,976.56 | $2,005.81 | $2,028.90

assessment

[Sum of all general rates
and municipal charges /
Number of property
assassmenis|

Result in-line with the Victorian
Government's 2023/24 rate
cap.

10
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Liquidity

Working capital

Current assets compared | 259.88% | 346.04% | 330.43% | 321.00% | 288.36% | 351.83% | 285.90% | 270.46% | 233.12% | Lower cash and investments

to current liabilities balance due to the

[Current assels / Current Commonwealth Government

liabilities] x100 Financial Assistance Grant
previously received in
advance, not received until
July 2024,

Unrestricted cash
Lower cash and investments
balance due to the

Unrestricted cash Commonwealth Government

compared fo current 208.08% | 285.73% | 189.29% | 163.81% | 131.85% | 173.78% | 154.71% | 145.83% | 105.40% | Financial Assistance Grant

liabilities previously received in
advance, not received until
July 2024.

[Unrestricted cash /

Current liabilities] x 100

Obligations

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings 2.23% 1.97% 1.20% 16.40% 3.30% 8.38% 20.75% 18.44% 16.18% | New borrowings to fund

compared fo rates

{Interest bearing loans
and borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100

11

construction of the
Yarrawonga Library precinct
and Yarrawonga Multi Sport
stadium originally budgeted in
2023/24 to be progressively

drawn down over future years.
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Loans and borrowings 1.80% 1.64% 0.73% 0.30% 0.32% 0.49% 1.25% 2.73% 2.67% | New borrowings to fund
repayments compared to construction of the
rates Yarrawonga Library precinct
[Interest and principal and Y arrawonga Mult Sponl
repayments on interest stadium originally budg\_eted in
bearing loans and 2023/24 to be progressively
borrowings / Rate drawn down over future years.
revenue] x100
Indebtedness

Result reflects positive impact
Non-current liabilities of higher interest income from
compared fa own source 30.30% 28.94% 21.99% 40.30% 20.28% 22.08% 29.85% 27.00% 24.71% | investments and recognition of
revenue assets not previously included

in accounts.
[Non-current liabilities /
Owh source revenue]
x100
Asset renewal and
upgrade
Asset renewal and 100.48% | 106.15% | 97.89% 209.00% | 70.65% 194.82% 97.53% 105.14% | 99.95% | Result impacted by higher
upgrade compared to depreciation charge of non-
depreciation current assets in 2023/24

[Asset renewal and asset
upgrade expense / Asset
depreciation] x100

following large asset valuation
movements over the past two
years. Delays in renewal works
resulting for the October 2022
flood events has meant
projects planned in 2023/24
have nol been commenced.

12
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Operating position

Adjusted underlying

result

Adjusted underlying 2.91% 11.48% 11.75% -4.20% -24.59% -4.92% -5.33% -6.84% -6.94% | Result impacted by higher

surplus {or deficit) depreciation charge of non-

(Adjusted underlying current assets in 2023/24

surplus (deffcit)/ Adjusted following large asset valuation

underlying revenue] x100 movements ovgr the past two
years and funding under the
Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grant
previously received in advance
not received in 2023/24.

Stability

Rates concentration
Rates contribution to total
revenue higher due to funding
under the Commonwealth

Rates compared to Government Financial

adjusted underlying 65.02% 60.55% 57.88% 65.50% 72.82% 63.95% 65.74% 66.60% 66.78% | Assistance Grant previously

revenue received in advance. 2024/25

[Rate revenue / Adjusted
underlying revenue] x 100

funding received in July 2024
to be recognised in 2024/25
accounts.

13
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024

FILE NO:
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNANCE

ITEM NO: 6.1
(COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [2] - DRAFT - 2024 Performance Statement
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Section 4. Sustainable capacity indicators

For the year ended 30 June 2024

population

[Value of infrastructure / Municipal
population]

Results
Indicator / measure
[formula)
2021 2022 2023 2024
Comments
Actual Actual Actual Actual
Population
Expenses per head of municipal population $1,965.62 $2,002.20 $2,121.41 $2,498.91 | Result impacted by higher depreciation charge of
non-current assets in 2023/24 following large
asset valuation movements over the past two
years.
Infrastructure per head of municipal $16,740.32 | $16,989.03 | $20,786.18 | $21,421.93 | Metric is increasing due to recent revaluations of

Council's infrastructure assets.

15
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Population density per length of road 8.21 8.21 8.35 8.40 No material variation
[Municipal populfation / Kilometres of local
roads|
Own-source revenue
$1,49450 | $1,569.87 $1,630.15 | $1,813.09 | Result reflects positive impact of higher interest
) income from investments and recognition of
Own-source revenue per head of municipal . . .
population assets not previously included in accounts.
[Own-source revenue / Municipal population]
Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per head of municipal $511.09 $654.81 $673.67 $148.63 Rates contribution to total revenue higher due to

population

[Recurrent grants / Municipal population]

funding under the Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grant previously received in
advance. 2024/25 funding received in July 2024
to be recognised in 2024/25 accounts.

16
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Disadvantage

Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage

[Index of Relative Socio-Economic

Disadvantage by decile] 2 2 2 2 No material variation

Workforce turnover

Percentage of staff turnover

[Number of permanent staff resignations and 4.44% 18.35% 16.26% 14.83% Reduced turnover rate due to temporary staff

terminations / Average number of permanent
staff for the financial year] x100

roles being replaced by permanent positions.

17
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [2] - DRAFT - 2024 Performance Statement

Section 5. Notes to the accounts

5.1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual
report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed, service
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity indicators and measures
together with a description of the municipal district, an explanation of material variations
in the results and notes to the accounts. This statement has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on
accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other
results are based on information drawn from council information systems or from third
parties (e.g., Australian Bureau of Statistics or the Council's satisfaction survey
provider).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and the
previous three years, along with the current year's target, if mandated by the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. Additionally, for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the performance statement includes the
target budget for the current year and the results forecast for the period 2024-25 to
2027-28 by the council's financial plan.

The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation
of any material variations in the results contained in the performance statement. Council
has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and
explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.
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CORPORATE PERFORMANCE
OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION

UNSCHEDULED MEETING OF COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024

FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1
5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE

STATEMENT (cont'd
ATTACHMENT No [2] - DRAFT - 2024 Performance Statement

5.2. Definitions

Key term
Aboriginal children
Aboriginal person

adjusted
underlying revenue

adjusted
underlying surplus
(or deficit)

annual report

asset renewal
expenditure

asset upgrade
expenditure

critical non-
compliance
outcome
notification

current assets
current liabilities
food premises

intervention level

local road

major non-
compliance
outcome

notification

MCH

non-current
liabilities

own-source
revenue

population

Definition
means a child who is an Aboriginal person
has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006
means total income other than:
. non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
. non-monetary asset contributions; and

. contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than
those referred to above

means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

means an annual report prepared by a council under section 98 of the Act

means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that
returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability

means expenditure that— (a) enhances an existing asset to provide a higher
level of service; or (b) extends the life of the asset beyond its original life

means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the
Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that
Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards
has the same meaning as in the Australian Accounting Standards
has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

means the level set for the condition of a road beyond which a council will not
allow the road to deteriorate and will need to intervene

means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road
authority under the Road Management Act 2004

means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the
Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer under that
Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public
health but may do so if no remedial action is taken

means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support
the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until
school age

means all liabilities other than current liabilities
means adjusled underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the

control of council {including government grants)

means the resident population estimated by council

15
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OFFICER REPORTS FOR DETERMINATION THURSDAY, 10 OCTOBER 2024
FILE NO: ITEM NO: 6.1

5. TRANSPARENT AND ACCOUNTABLE (COORDINATOR FINANCE, ANDREW
GOVERNANCE WILSON)

(ACTING DIRECTOR CORPORATE
PERFORMANCE EVA SALIB)

CERTIFICATION OF THE 2023/24 FINANCIAL REPORT AND PERFORMANCE
STATEMENT (cont'd

ATTACHMENT No [2] - DRAFT - 2024 Performance Statement

rate revenue means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and
service charges

relative socio- in relation to a municipal district, means the relative socio-economic
economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area
disadvantage in which the municipal district is located according to the Index of Relative

Socio-Economic Disadvantage of SEIFA

restricted cash means cash, cash equivalents and financial assets, within the meaning of the
Awustralian Accounting Standards, not available for use other than for a
purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital
works expenditure from the previous financial year

SEIFA means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by
the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet site

unrestricted cash means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash

20

Page 89 of 89



	1. Executive Summary
	2. Background
	3. 2024 Financial Report Summary
	4. Conclusion

